
 

 
i 

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PUBLIC SERVICE PLAZA 
CIVIC CENTRE ROAD 
HAVANT 
HAMPSHIRE P09 2AX 
 
Telephone: 023 9244 6019 
Website: www.havant.gov.uk 
 
 

 

12 September 2023 
SUMMONS 

Dear Councillor 
 
You are requested to attend the following meeting: 
 
Meeting: Planning Committee 

Date: Thursday 21 September 2023 

Time: 5.00 pm 

Venue: Hurstwood Room, Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road, 
Havant, Hampshire PO9 2AX 

 
The business to be transacted is set out below:  
 
Steve Jorden 
Chief Executive 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
 
Membership:      Councillor Keast (Chairman) 
 
Councillors Patrick (Vice-Chairman), Coates, Denton, Linger, Rason and Weeks 
 
Standing Deputies: Councillors Blades, Milne, Patel and Scannell 
 
 
Contact Officer: Ernest Lam 02 392446350 
 Email:  ernest.lam@havant.gov.uk 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
Can Councillors Please Submit Any Detailed Technical Questions On The 
Items Included In This Agenda To The Contact Officer At Least 4 Hours Before 
The Meeting Starts. 
 
 
  Page  
1  Apologies for Absence   

 

 

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/


 

 
ii 

To receive and record any apologies for absence. 
   

2  Minutes   
 
To approve the minutes of the Planning Committee held on 31 August 
2023 and the minutes of the Site Viewing Working Party held on 14 
September 2023. 
  

1 - 12 

 
3  Declarations of Interests   

 
To receive and record any declarations of interests from Members 
present. 
   

 

 
4  Matters to be Considered for Deferment or Site Viewing   

 
To consider matters for deferment or site viewing. 
   

 

 
5  Applications for Development   

 
13 - 16 

 
5(a)   APP/23/00215 - The Gable, 32 Fishery Lane, Hayling Island, PO11 

9NR   
Proposal: Replacement of existing gates with 1.8m high timber gates 

and extension of associated brick piers. 
  
Additional Documents 
  
   

17 - 38 

 
5(b)   APP/23/00112 - Dale Lodge, 172 The Dale, Waterlooville, PO7 5JE   

Proposal: Erection of 1No. dwelling with 2No. car parking spaces, 
cycle & bin storage. 

 
Additional Documents 
  

39 - 76 

 
 

https://planningpublicaccess.havant.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=DCAPR_255402
https://planningpublicaccess.havant.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=DCAPR_255168


 

 
iii 

 GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR ANY 
OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, AUDIO OR IN 
ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT DEMOCRATIC 
SERVICES ON 023 9244 6019 
 
Internet 
 
This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the Havant Borough 
Council website: www.havant.gov.uk 
 
Public Attendance and Participation 
 
This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the Havant Borough 
Council website: www.havant.gov.uk.  Would you please note that committee reports 
are subject to changes and you are recommended to regularly check the website 
and to contact Ernest Lam (tel no: 02 392446350) on the afternoon prior to the 
meeting for details of any amendments issued. 
 
The Council will endeavour to broadcast the meeting. However, please be aware  
that the meeting will continue, in the event of the broadcast failing at any time. The  
Councill will also endeavour to record the meeting and make the recording available  
to watch for up to six months from the date of the meeting. 
 
IP addresses will not be collected, however in order to function, Teams Live collects 
background data limited to when a user enters and leaves the meeting and the web 
browser version used.  Data collected will be kept and recorded for the purposes of 
this meeting.  
 
Submitting your views at a Meeting of the Planning Committee 
  
The Council has a scheme whereby objectors, supporters, applicants, agents, 
County Councillors and Havant Borough Councillors, who are not attending as 
members of the Planning Committee, may submit their views to the Committee 
either: 
  
(i) by submitting a written statement; or 
  
(ii) asking to address the Committee at the meeting When requesting his, a 

statement (“deputation statement”) must be provided in advance, setting out 
the issues you want to raise with the Committee. 

  
The main features of the scheme are: 
  

• Written statements or requests to speak will only be accepted if they relate to 
a specific application included in the agenda for a Planning Committee 
meeting 

 
• Written statements and deputation statements must be no longer than 750 

words except for Havant Borough Councillors, who have a limit of 1500 words 
 

http://www.havant.gov.uk/


 

 
iv 

• Written statements and requests to speak (including a copy of the deputation 
statement) must be received by democraticservices@havant.gov.uk  by no 
later than 48 hours before the start of the meeting. Any written submissions or 
requests to speak received after this deadline will be rejected. 

 
• A request to speak at a meeting which is not supported by a deputation 

statement will be rejected. 
 

• No more than 2 people may speak against an application 
 

• No more than 2 people may speak in support of an application 
 

• No more than 2 County Councillors may speak on an application 
 

• Requests to speak will be accepted on a first come, first serve basis. 
 

• Written submissions and deputation statements that have accepted will be 
published on the Council’s website. 

 
  
Further details are set out in the Council’s Constitution  and the Speaking 
at Planning Committees Guidelines. 
  
If there has been a summary text within six months of any previous appearance on 
the same or similar topic (irrespective of whether or not the member(s) of the 
summary text might be different) then no such new summary text will be received 
until that time limit has expired. However, "same or similar topic" does not apply to 
applications for planning permission considered by the Planning Committee.  
 
 
Written Summary texts may be sent to: 

 
 By Email to: DemocraticServices@havant.gov.uk 
  
 By Post to : 
 
 Democratic Services Officer 
Havant Borough Council  
Public Service Plaza 
Civic Centre Road 
Havant, Hants P09 2AX 
 
Delivered at: 
 
 Havant Borough Council 
Public Service Plaza 
Civic Centre Road 
Havant, Hants P09 2AX 
 
marked for the Attention of the “Democratic Services Team” 
 

Disabled Access 

mailto:democraticservices@havant.gov.uk
https://havant.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=506&MId=11235&Ver=4&Info=1
https://havant.moderngov.co.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD1202&ID=1202&RPID=2650137
https://havant.moderngov.co.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD1202&ID=1202&RPID=2650137
mailto:DemocraticServices@havant.gov.uk


 

 
v 

 
The Public Service Plaza has full access and facilities for the disabled. 
 
Emergency Procedure 
 
Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits which are 
clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will sound. 
 
PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY. 
 
DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO 
 
No Smoking Policy 
 
The Public Service Plaza operates a strict No Smoking policy in all of its offices, 
corridors, meeting rooms and toilets.  
 
Parking 
 
Pay and display car parking is available in the Leisure Centre car park opposite the 
Plaza. 

 
 



 

 
vi 

 

Public 
Service 
Plaza



  1 
Planning Committee 

31 August 2023 
 
 

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
At a meeting of the Planning Committee held on 31 August 2023 
 
Present  
 
Councillor Keast (Chairman) 
 
Councillors  Patrick (Vice-Chairman), Coates, Denton, Linger, Rason and Weeks 
 
Other Councillors Present: 
 
Councillor(s): Stone and Philippa Gray 
 
34 Apologies for Absence  

 
There were no apologies for absence received for this meeting.  
  

35 Minutes  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Planning Committee held on 20 July 2023 
be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman; and the minutes 
of the Site Viewing Working Party held on 24 August 2023 be received. 
 

36 Declarations of Interests  
 
There were no declarations of interests relating to matters on the agenda. 
 

37 Matters to be Considered for Deferment or Site Viewing 
 

38 APP/23/00076 - Tournerbury Woods, Tournerbury Lane, Hayling Island  
 
(The site was viewed by the Site Viewing Working Party) 
  
Proposal:      Change of Use of land and woodland (retrospective) as a wedding 

and events venue, including retention of permanent ancillary 
buildings and structures, the erection of removable structures 
(including marquees and temporary facilities), and the use of the 
land as a campsite in association with events. Construction of 
vehicular track from the public highway to the proposed wedding 
and events venue at Tournerbury Woods. 

  
The Committee considered the written report and recommendation from the 
Head of Planning to grant permission. 
  
The Committee received supplementary information, circulated prior to the  
meeting, which included: 
  
1.               Written deputations submitted by 

a.     Ms Barnett 
b.     Ms Barwick Page 1

Agenda Item 2



  2 
Planning Committee 

31 August 2023 
 
 

c.     Ms Batchelor 
d.     Ms Brookes, on behalf of Havant Climate Alliance and Havant 

Friends of the Earth 
e.     Mr Fine 
f.       Mr Ford 
g.     Ms French, on behalf of Holbury Consultancy Services  
h.     Ms Knowles 
i.       Ms Meredith 
j.       Mr Morris, the applicant’s agent 
k.     Mr and Mrs Phillips 
l.       Councillor Payter 
m.   County Councillor Quantrill 
n.     Professor Raper 

  
The Committee was addressed by: 
  
1.                  Professor Raper, who reiterated the issues set out in the written 

deputation submitted. 
  
Professor Raper also claimed that 175 trees have disappeared from the 
development site. 

  
2.                  Councillor Stone, who reiterated the issues set out in the written 

deputation on behalf of Councillor Payter 
  

3.                  County Councillor Quantrill, who reiterated the issues set out in the 
written deputation.  

  
Councillor Quantrill added there would be many economic benefits 
associated with permitting the application. The site would be a unique 
venue for attracting business. Monies generated by the site could also 
be reinvested in the local community. The site could also generate 
parking income for the Council.  

  
4.                  Ms Meredith, who reiterated the issues set out in the written deputation 

submitted.  
  
5.                  Mr Morris, the applicant’s agent, who reiterated the issues set out in the 

written deputation submitted on behalf of the applicant.  
  
Mr Morris added that environmental harm would not be brought by the 
development of the site. Contrarily, the environment within the site 
would be enhanced. 

  
The officers commented on the issues raised by public speakers and in the 
written submissions as follows: 

  
       The complaint running with Natural England would be a separate matter 

and not for the Council or the Planning Committee to adjudicate.   
       The most up-to-date representation made by Natural England had raised 

no objections to the application. Page 2



  3 
Planning Committee 

31 August 2023 
 
 

       Natural England had made no changes to their latest representation.  
       There were no requirements to upgrade the existing tracks that runs 

through the woodland in the application.  
  
In response to questions from members of the Committee, officers pointed out 
that: 
  
a.                  The track along the northern boundary provided a hard permanent track 

that allows vehicles to safely pass. No further works were required to 
make it usable for traffic. 

b.                  The Council has a range of enforcement powers to remedy breaches of 
conditions. Appropriate action would be taken depending on the 
severity of the breach. 

c.                   There were a number of conditions in the reports covering the concerns 
raised by Members.  

d.                  Dogs on lead was not a new feature in this application.  
e.                  Site manager and staff on site would monitor dogs within the venue.  
f.                    There were a number of conditions covering various issues such as 

noise and number of venues to be held in the site.  
g.                  The Council would take breaches of planning conditions very seriously. 
h.                  The matter of fire risk and fire safety were not a matter within the 

purview of local planning authority. Responsibility for fire safety at 
venue would rest with Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service. 

i.                     The Hampshire Fire & Rescue Service has been consulted in regard to 
the application. 

j.                     It wasn’t possible to impose a condition to require the new access track 
to be delivered within a set timeframe because the track was outside of 
the control of the applicant. 

k.                   There were no tree removals required to deliver the site’s development 
requirements. 

l.                     The representations on this application, such as complaints were all 
published on the relevant planning pages on the Council’s website. 

  
The Committee discussed the application in detail together with the views 
raised by deputees. 
  
The Committee raised concerns regarding the supervision on the use of the 
campsite. The Committee also raised concerns about the completion of the 
new access track along Tournerbury Farm. Nonetheless, the Committee 
considered that there is a realistic probability that the track would be completed. 
  
RESOLVED that application APP/23/00076 be granted permission subject to: 
  

(A)  the receipt of updated versions of the Wedding Guest Visitor Management 
Strategy and Noise Management Plan as set out at Paragraphs 7.57 and 7.75 
of the officer report; 
  

(B)  completion of a Unilateral Undertaking under Section 106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act to secure the avoidance and mitigation package of 
£7,283.00 as set out at Paragraph 7.11 of the officer report; and 
  Page 3



  4 
Planning Committee 

31 August 2023 
 
 

(C)  the following conditions (subject to such changes and/or additions that the 
Head of Planning considers necessary to impose prior to the issuing of the 
decision): 

  
(1)   The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the following approved plans and documents: 

  
Plans 
Location Plan with access to Public Highway and camping area (green 
outline) dated 20/01/2023 

Topographic Survey with Parking Annotated – Job No. 
05918_TPOP_500_REV_D published 01 February 2023 

Topographic Survey – Link of Proposed Access to Existing Right of Way 
– Drawing No. 9048/01 published 01 February 2023 

BJC Planning Location and Site Plan no.: H125/2021.04.23/SPRr 
published 01 February 2023 

Gifford Tree Service Arboricultural Impact Assessment/Statement and 
Tree Protection Plans dated 4th October 2021 

Paul Basham Associates Coach Vehicle Tracking PBA Drawing No. 
097.0006.001 Revision B 

Elevations File 1 – Job No. 05918_ELEVS1_PRE published 01 February 
2023 

Marquee Floor Plan published 01 February 2023 

Elevations File 2 – Job No. 05918_ELEVS2_PRE published 01 February 
2023 

Deck Area Floor Plan published 01 February 2023 

Documents 

Shadow Habitats Regulations Assessment (Holbury Consultancy 
Service, November 2021)  

Ecological Impact Assessment (HES, December 2020)  

Bat Survey report (HES, December 2020) 

Noise Management Plan (updated as (A) above)  

Tournerbury Woods Estate Wedding Guest Visitor Management 
Strategy (updated as (A) above)  

Holbury Consultancy Service Technical Note dated 5th July 2023 

Holbury Consultancy Service Technical Note dated 14th June 2023 

Holbury Consultancy Service Technical Note dated 2nd March 2023 

Page 4



  5 
Planning Committee 

31 August 2023 
 
 

Mayer Brown ‘Connection To Existing Estate Track’ document dated 
July 2023 

Noise Assessment report prepared by Owen Clingan of Aurcale 
Acoustics dated 17 October 2013 

Soundproof Marquees – Mitigation Strategy produced by Direct Acoustic 
Solutions Limited dated 12 June 2019 

Flood Risk Assessment December 2021 published 01 February 2023 

Drainage, Foul Sewage and Utilities assessment published 01 February 
2023 

Transport Statement dated November 2021 

  

Nitrogen budget (Holbury Consultancy Service, June 2022) 

Reason: - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development. 
  

(2)  The use of the site as a wedding and events venue shall not commence 
until the access route to the venue from Tournerbury Lane, as shown on 
the approved ‘Location Plan with access to Public Highway and camping 
area (green outline)’ dated 20/01/2023 has been completed and made 
available for such use. 
Reason: In order to prevent unacceptable levels of noise and 
disturbance to occupiers of the adjacent Tournerbury Farm dwellings; 
and to avoid conflict between visitor movements and the safe and 
satisfactory functioning of the farmyard activities as a whole; and having 
due regard to Policies CS16 and DM10 of the Havant Borough Local 
Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy AL1 of the Havant Borough Local Plan 
(Allocations) 2014 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
  

(3)  The site shall not be used as a wedding and events venue at any time 
unless the access route to the venue from Tournerbury Lane, as shown 
on the approved ‘Location Plan with access to Public Highway and 
camping area (green outline)’ dated 20/01/2023 is available and used for 
access to the venue for all purposes. 
Reason: In order to prevent unacceptable levels of noise and 
disturbance to occupiers of the adjacent Tournerbury Farm dwellings; 
and to avoid conflict between visitor movements and the safe and 
satisfactory functioning of the farmyard activities as a whole; and having 
due regard to Policies CS16 and DM10 of the Havant Borough Local 
Plan (Core Strategy) 2011, Policy AL1 of the Havant Borough Local Plan 
(Allocations) 2014 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
  

(4)  Construction of the vehicular track to the site, as shown on the approved 
‘Location Plan with access to Public Highway and camping area (green 
outline)’ dated 20/01/2023 shall be carried out in full accordance with the 
following approved documents: Page 5



  6 
Planning Committee 

31 August 2023 
 
 

  
Track from Tournerbury Lane to western boundary of Estate (lying within 
Tournerbury Farm): 

       BJC Planning Location and Site Plan no.: 
H125/2021.04.23/SPRr published 01 February 2023 

       Gifford Tree Service Arboricultural Impact 
Assessment/Statement and Tree Protection Plans dated 4th 
October 2021 

       Paul Basham Associates Coach Vehicle Tracking PBA 
Drawing No. 
097.0006.001 Revision B 
  

          Connection of track to existing northern boundary track within Estate 

       Holbury Consultancy Service Technical Note dated 5th July 
2023 

       Holbury Consultancy Service Technical Note dated 14th June 
2023 

       Holbury Consultancy Service Technical Note dated 2nd March 
2023 

       Mayer Brown ‘Connection To Existing Estate Track’ document 
dated July 2023 

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and the nearby 
and on-site environmentally sensitive areas, and having due regard to 
policies CS11, CS16, and DM8 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core 
Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

  
(5)  No percussive piling or works with heavy machinery (i.e. plant resulting 

in a noise level in excess of LA(max)(fast)(1 hour) 69 dB – measured at 
the sensitive receptor) shall be undertaken in the construction of the 
vehicular track hereby approved during the bird overwintering period (i.e. 
October to March inclusive). 
Reason: In the interests of the nearby environmentally sensitive areas 
and having due regard for Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local 
Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

  
(6)  Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the 

length of track running from Tournerbury Lane to its connection with the 
existing northern boundary track within the Estate hereby permitted shall 
not be brought into use prior to the completion of the implementation of 
all hardsurfacing in full accordance with the plans and particulars 
approved in the Local Planning Authority's Discharge of Condition Notice 
dated 01 May 2020 in respect of Condition 4 of Planning Permission 
APP/17/00207; viz: 

       Mr & Mrs G Phillips letter dated 2 December 2019, as 
supplemented by Grahame Phillips letter dated 2 February 
2020 Page 6



  7 
Planning Committee 

31 August 2023 
 
 

       Web links document received 5 February 2020 
       County Highways Laboratory aggregate specifications for 6F5 

Sub Base and Type 1 Recycled received 5 February 2020 
       Compliment slip and sample of planings received 5 February 

2020 
Reason:  In the interests of the amenities of the locality and having due 
regard to policies CS11, CS16, and DM8 of the Havant Borough Local 
Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
  

(7)  Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the 
length of track running from Tournerbury Lane to its connection with the 
existing northern boundary track within the Estate hereby permitted shall 
not be brought into use prior to the completion of the implementation of 
all drainage provision in full accordance with the plans and particulars 
approved in the Local Planning Authority's Discharge of Condition Notice 
dated 01 May 2020 in respect of Condition 3 of Planning Permission 
APP/17/00207; viz: 

       Mr & Mrs G Phillips letter dated 2 December 2019, as 
amended by Grahame Phillips letter dated 2 February 2020 

       Plan of new track at Tournerbury Farm received 5 February 
2020 

       Web links document received 5 February 2020 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the locality and ensure that all 
such drainage provision is constructed to an appropriate standard and 
quality and having due regard to policies and proposals CS16 and DM10 
of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
  

(8)  All existing hedges or hedgerows shall be retained, unless shown on the 
approved drawings as being removed.  Any parts of hedges or 
hedgerows removed without the Local Planning Authority's consent or 
which die or become, in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, 
seriously diseased or otherwise damaged within five years following 
contractual practical completion of the approved development shall be 
replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable and, in any case, by not 
later than the end of the first available planting season, with plants of 
such size and species and in such positions as may be agreed with the 
Local Planning Authority.  
Reason: To ensure the continuity of amenity afforded by existing hedges 
or hedgerows and having due regard to policies CS16 and DM8 of the 
Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
  

Page 7



  8 
Planning Committee 

31 August 2023 
 
 

(9)  All trees and hedgerows proposed along the vehicular track hereby 
permitted shall be planted during the first planting season following the 
bringing into use of the track.  The trees shall comprise 8-10cm regular 
standard size trees. Any trees or hedge plants planted which are 
removed, uprooted, destroyed, die or become severely damaged or 
become seriously diseased within 5 years of planting shall be replaced 
within the next planting season by trees or hedge plants of similar size 
and species to those originally required to be planted. 
Reason: To ensure the appearance of the development is satisfactory 
and having due regard to policies CS11, CS16, and DM8 of the Havant 
Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
  
  

(10)                  The premises shall only be open to the public between 08:00hrs 
and midnight on wedding or event days.  Any performances of live, 
recorded, amplified or acoustic music within the marquee acoustic 
enclosure shall finish by 23:00hrs. 
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and having due 
regard to policies CS16, and DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan 
(Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
  

(11)                  (i) The number of weddings and events per year shall be limited to 
65, and guest numbers shall be limited as follows: 

  
Maximum Number of 
Patrons 

Maximum Number of Weddings and 
Events Per Year 

250 10 
200 10 
150 30 
90 15 

  

          (ii) The number of camping pitches in any year shall not exceed 88. 

Reason: In order to secure appropriate control of the uses hereby 
approved, in the interests of the amenities of the locality and the nearby 
and on-site environmentally sensitive areas, and having due regard to 
policies CS11, CS16, and DM8 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core 
Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

(12)    The weddings and events in each 3-month period shall be reported to 
the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the following schedule: 

Months Reporting Deadline 
January, February, and March 1 May of that same year 
April, May and June 1 August of that same year 
July, August, and September 1 November of that same year 
October, November and 
December 

1 February of the following year  
Page 8



  9 
Planning Committee 

31 August 2023 
 
 
  

The reports shall include the date and number of patrons that attended 
each event; and the number of camping pitches.  

Reason: In order to secure appropriate monitoring of the uses hereby 
approved, in the interests of the amenities of the locality and the nearby 
and on-site environmentally sensitive areas, and having due regard to 
policies CS11, CS16, and DM8 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core 
Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

(13)                  All recorded or live music to be provided within the marquee area 
for the entertainment of wedding or function guests shall only be 
employed within the designated acoustic enclosure / dance floor area 
sited there-in, and the noise level within this enclosure shall not exceed 
the maximum LAeq (time) 95dB as recommended.   
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and having due 
regard to policies CS16, and DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan 
(Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

  
(14)                   During the months of October to March (inclusive), any music 

noise from the application site shall not exceed LA(max)(fast)(1 hour) 69 
dB on any part of the foreshore area within the Special Protection Area 
(SPA). 
Reason: In the interests of the nearby environmentally sensitive areas 
and having due regard for Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local 
Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
  

(15)                  Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, the use of the application site for wedding and event venue 
purposes shall at all times be carried out strictly in accordance with the 
provisions set out in the following documents: 
       Noise Management Plan (updated as (A) above)  
       Tournerbury Woods Estate Wedding Guest Visitor Management 

Strategy (updated as (A) above)  
Reason: In order to manage the impact of the uses hereby approved, in 
the interests of the amenities of the locality and the nearby and on-site 
environmentally sensitive areas, and having due regard to policies 
CS11, CS16, and DM8 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core 
Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

(16)                  Development shall proceed strictly in accordance with the Shadow 
Habitats Regulations Assessment (Holbury Consultancy Service, 
November 2021), Ecological Impact Assessment (HES, December 2020) 
and Bat Survey report (HES, December 2020) unless otherwise agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All ecological mitigation and 
enhancement measures shall be implemented as per the ecologists’ 
instructions. All ecological enhancement measures shall be retained in a 
location and condition suited to their intended function.  

Page 9



  10 
Planning Committee 

31 August 2023 
 
 

Reason: To protect and enhance biodiversity in accordance with the 
Conservation Regulations 2017, Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, NERC 
Act 2006, NPPF and Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan 
(Core Strategy) 2011. 

  
(17)                  On the fourth anniversary of the planning permission hereby 

granted, and for every four years thereafter, a report of an ecological 
survey of the Estate woodland shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority. The physical extent of each survey shall accord with that 
contained in the submitted Natural England document ‘A review of the 
condition of Tournerbury Woods, part of Chichester Harbour SSSI’ dated 
November 2022, and each survey shall address the condition of the 
woodland in relation to the objectives set out in that document, and set 
out management measures in the event that any of those objectives fall 
below favourable condition. 
Reason: In order to secure appropriate monitoring of the impact of the 
uses hereby approved, in the interests of the amenities of the locality 
and the nearby and on-site environmentally sensitive areas, and having 
due regard to policies CS11, CS16, and DM8 of the Havant Borough 
Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
Appendices 
  

(A)  Location Plan 
(B)  Annotated Site Plan 
(C)  Marquee Elevations 
(D)  Marquee Floor Plan 
(E)  Gazebo Elevation 
(F)   Log Cabin and Decking Elevation 
(G)  Log Cabin and Decking Floor Plan 
(H)  Proposed Vehicular Access 
(I)     Wedding Guest Visitor Management Strategy 
(J)   Noise Management Plan 

  
  
 

39 APP/23/00057 - 126 West Street, Havant, PO9 1LW  
 
Proposal:      Proposed dropped kerb. 
  
The Committee considered the written report and recommendation from the 
Head of Planning to grant permission. 
  
The Committee acknowledged that the application was referred to the 
Committee as this was a staff application and discussed the application in 
detail. 
  
RESOLVED that application APP/23/00057 be granted permission subject to 
the following conditions: Page 10



  11 
Planning Committee 

31 August 2023 
 
 
  

1 The development must be begun not later than three years 
beginning with the date of this permission. 
  
Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

    
2 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
3 

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 

  
L01 REVA Amended Location Plan  
B01 REVA Amended Block Plan 
A101 REVA Amended Site Plan 
  
Reason: - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development. 
  
The dropped kerb hereby approved shall not be brought into use 
prior to the completion of the drainage works shown on approved 
drawing A101 REVA. Such drainage provision shall be retained at 
all times thereafter. 
  
Reason: In order to secure satisfactory highway design that does 
not result in runoff the public highway, and having due regard to 
Policies CS16 and CS20 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core 
Strategy) 2011. 

    
  
Appendices: 
  

(A)  Amended Location Plan 
(B)  Amended Crossover Plan  
(C)  Front elevation showing location and measurement of dropped kerb  

  
 

 
The meeting commenced at 5.00 pm and concluded at 6.55 pm 

 
 
 

 
…………………………… 

 
Chairman 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 
                
 
HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
Planning Committee  

 
APPLICATIONS FOR DEVELOPMENT AND OTHER DEVELOPMENT 
CONTROL MATTERS 
REPORT BY THE EXECUTIVE HEAD OF PLACE 

 
 
 
 
 
Applications to be determined by the Council as the Local Planning Authority 
 
Members are advised that all planning applications have been publicised in 
accordance with the Code of Practice for Publicity of Planning Applications approved 
at Minute 207/25/6/92, and have been referred to the Planning Committee in 
accordance with the Delegation Procedure for Determining Planning Applications 'Red 
Card System' approved at minutes 86(1)/4/97 and 19/12/97. 
 
All views of consultees, amenity bodies and local residents will be summarised in the 
relevant report only if received prior to the report being prepared, otherwise only those 
views contrary to the recommendation of the Head of Planning will be reported 
verbally at the meeting of the Planning Committee. 
 
Members are reminded that all letters received are placed upon the application 
file and are available for Planning Committee Members to read on request. 
Where a member has concerns on such matters, they should speak directly to 
the officer dealing with the planning application or other development control 
matter, and if appropriate make the time available to inspect the file and the 
correspondence thereon prior to the meeting of the Planning Committee. 
 
The coded conditions and reasons for refusal included in the recommendations are 
set out in full in the Council's Manual of Model Conditions and Reasons for Refusal 
The standard conditions may be modified to meet the specific circumstances of each 
individual application.  Members are advised to bring their copies to the meeting of the 
Planning Committee. 
 
In reaching decisions on the applications for development and other development 
control matters regard should be paid to the approved development plan, all other 
material considerations, the views of consultees, the recommendations of the Head of 
Planning, and where applicable the views of the Site Viewing Working Party. 
 
The following abbreviations are frequently used in the officers' reports: 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



HPS  Head of Planning Services 
HCSPR Hampshire County Structure Plan - Review 
HBLP Havant Borough Local Plan (comprising the adopted Core Strategy 

2011 and saved policies from the District Wide Local Plan 2005. A 
related emerging document is the Draft Allocations Plan 2012) 

HWLP Hampshire, Portsmouth & Southampton Minerals & Waste Local Plan 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 2012 
HBCCAR Havant Borough Council Conservation Area Review 
AONB Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
CA Conservation Area 
LB Listed Building included in the list of Buildings of Architectural or Historic 

Interest 
SAC Special Area of Conservation 
SINC Site of Importance for Nature Conservation 
SPA Site identified as a Special Protection Area for the protection of birds 

under the Ramsar Convention 
SSSI Site of Special Scientific Interest 
FP Definitive Footpath 
POS Public Open Space 
TPO Tree Preservation Order 
HBC Havant Borough Council 
GPDO Town & Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 
DMPO Town & Country Planning (Development Management 

Procedure)(England) Order 2010 amended 
UCO Town & Country Planning  (Use Classes) Order 
S106 Section 106 Agreement 
Ha. Hectare(s) 
m. Metre(s) 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To reach decisions on the applications for development and other matters having 
regard to the approved development plan, all other material considerations, the views 
of consultees, the recommendations of the Head of Planning, and where applicable 
the views of the Site Viewing Working Party. 
 
 
Implications  
 
Resources:  
 
None unless detailed in attached report. 
 
Legal: 
 
Details set in the individual reports 
  
 

Page 14



 
Strategy:  
 
The efficient determination of applications and making of other decisions under the 
Town & Country Planning Acts in an open manner, consistent with the Council’s 
planning policies,  Regional Guidance and Central Government Advice and 
Regulations seeks to ensure the appropriate use of land in the public interest by the 
protection and enhancement of the natural and historic environment; the promotion 
of the economy; the re-use of existing buildings and redevelopment of ‘brownfield’ 
sites; and the promotion of higher densities and good quality design in all new 
development all of which matters assist in promoting the aims of the Council’s 
Community Strategy. 
 
Risks:  
 
Details set out in the individual reports 
 
Communications:  
 
Details set out in the individual reports 
 
Background Papers:  
Individual Applications with Case Officers 
 
 
Alex Robinson 
Executive Head of Place 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
—————————————————————————————————————— 
 Site Address: The Gable, 32 Fishery Lane, Hayling Island, PO11 9NR   
 Proposal:          Replacement of existing gates with 1.8m high timber gates and 

extension of associated brick piers. 
 Application Type:  Full Planning Permission 
 Application No: APP/23/00215  Expiry Date: 04/05/2023 
 Applicant: Mr Gammon   
 Agent:  Case Officer: Denise Sheath 
 Ward: Hayling East   
 
 Reason for Committee Consideration: At the request of Councillor Coates 

 
Executive Head of Place Recommendation: GRANT PERMISSION 

—————————————————————————————————————— 
 
Executive Summary 
 
32 Fishery Lane is a large two storey detached dwelling which has a generous amenity 
space to the west, which is set back and behind properties fronting Fishery Lane. Access to 
32 Fishery Lane is via a long driveway to the north, between 30 and 32a Fishery Lane. 
 
The proposal would increase the height of the existing 1.5m high brick piers to 1.8m to be 
rendered white and to replace the existing 2 No. 1.2m high 5 bar gates with a pair of 1.8m 
high solid timber gates. The replacement gates would be set back to the rear of the face of 
the piers, and as such would lie approximately 4m from the edge of the footway.  The 
proposed gates would be stained to match the colour of the existing gate and adjacent 
fences. The replacement gates would continue to open into the site's driveway.   
  
The streetscene of Fishery Lane has a mixture of boundary frontages consisting of brick 
walls, hedging and fencing.  The properties opposite the application site (No.15 and No.17 
Fishery Lane) have installed timber gates and fencing at an approximate height of 1.8m to 
their frontages (See Appendix F).  It is therefore considered that the proposed raising of the 
height of the brick piers and installation of new timber gates would not be out of keeping 
within the mixed street character and would not have a harmful impact upon the visual 
amenity of the area. 
 
The increase in height of the piers by approximately 0.3m and the replacement gates would 
not create overshadowing or have an overbearing impact to either of the adjoining 
neighbours, and would therefore would not result in an adverse impact on adjoining 
neighbours' amenity.   
 
The proposal would not have an adverse impact on highway safety. 
 
In conclusion, the scale, siting and design of the proposal would have limited and 
acceptable impact on the neighbours, the street scene and on highway safety and is 
therefore considered to be appropriate and recommended for approval. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5(a)



1.  Site Description 
 
1.1 32 Fishery Lane is a large two storey detached dwelling which has a generous amenity 

space to the west, which is set back and behind properties fronting Fishery Lane. 
Access to 32 Fishery Lane is via a long driveway to the north, between 30 and 32a 
Fishery Lane. 

 
1.2 No 32 has a fully hard-surfaced area to the front of the property for the parking of 

multiple vehicles and to enable such vehicles to enter and leave the site in a forward 
gear.  

 
1.3 The curtilage boundary varies in height and materials along a number of differing 

shared boundaries. To the north east is a mixture of 2m high timber fencing and 3m 
hedging.  To the north west the boundary comprises 1.8m high timber fencing, the 
side elevation of No 30 and 3m hedging. To the west is No 32's main private amenity 
space, laid as lawn and surrounded by 3-4m high hedging. To the eastern boundary  
is 2m high timber fencing. 

 
1.4 Currently a set of 1.2m high 5 bar gates with 1.5m high brick piers denotes the 

boundary of the vehicular access with the public domain in Fishery Lane; at this point 
the gravelled drive gives way to a tarmacked apron leading to the footway of Fishery 
Lane. 

 
2 Planning History  
  

97/52442/002 - Felling of Red Horse Chestnut tree covered by TPO 982. Refused 
08/09/1997. 

 
03/57900/000 - Variation of Condition 3 of Planning permission 22521/13 dated 8 May 
1981 to allow for the retention of a clear glazed window on the south elevation. 
Refused 06/05/2003. 
 
03/57900/001 - Application to crown reduce by up to 30%, crown thin by 10% and 
crown raise to a height of 3m a Horse Chestnut (T1) subject to TPO 0982. Permitted 
12/06/2003. 
 
07/57900/002 - Fell a Horse Chestnut tree (T1) subject to TPO 0982. Refused 
14/11/2007. 
 
APP/14/00316 - Crown reduce 1No. Horse Chestnut (T1) by 2.8m from the top, 2m 
from the sides and remove any dead, crossing or epicormic branches; remove lowest 
limb on east sector back to trunk, subject to TPO 0982. Permitted 30/04/2014 
 
APP/17/01118 - Fell 1 No. Horse Chestnut (T1) subject to TPO 0982. Permitted 
24/11/2017. 
 
APP/18/00099 - Erection of 1No. two bed chalet bungalow. (Resubmission.) Refused 
27/03/2018. 
 
APP/23/00545 - Application for Lawful Development Certificate for proposed alteration 
to existing brick piers and replacement of existing gates. Refused 30/08/2023. 

 
3 Proposal 
 
3.1 The proposal would increase the height of the existing 1.5m high brick piers to 1.8m to 

Page 18



be rendered white, and to replace the 2 No. 1.2m high 5 bar gates with a pair of 1.8m 
high solid timber gates. The replacement gates would be set back to the rear of the 
face of the piers approximately 4m from the edge of the footway.  The proposed gates 
would be stained to match the colour of the existing gate and adjacent fences. The 
replacement gates would continue to open into the site's driveway. 

 
4 Policy Considerations  
  
 National Planning Policy Framework 
 Havant Borough Council Borough Design Guide SPD December 2011         
 Havant Borough Council Parking SPD July 2016 

 
Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) March 2011 
CS16 (High Quality Design) 
DM13 (Car and Cycle Parking on Residential Development) 
  
Havant Borough Local Plan (Allocations) July 2014 
AL1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development) 
 

 Listed Building Grade: Not applicable. 
 Conservation Area: Not applicable. 
 
5 Statutory and Non Statutory Consultations  
  

Councillor Leah Turner - Hayling East 
 
No comments received 

 
Councillor R Raines - Hayling East 
 
No comments received 
 
Councillor M Coates – Hayling East 
 

 Thank you for the information provided - I have had a more detailed read of the 
delegated report and I would like to Red Card the application for the Planning 
Committee.   

 
 I would be grateful if they could look at points 7.5 and 7.10 on page 5.   
 
 On point 7.5 - having visited the area on several occasions I can confirm that there are 

a few other properties opposite and several yards further west up Fishery Lane with 
high fencing along their frontages, but not in that section of the road (south side from 
Marshall Road to the green).  It would be out of character with neighbouring houses 
and change the tone of that part of the lane by the shop.   

 
 On point 7.10 - I have concerns about the effect of raising the brick pliers and installing 

gates which are potentially higher than the neighbouring property's hedge frontage.  If 
there is room for manoeuvre here and the overall structure can be lowered so it is flush 
with the neighbouring frontage, then this would negate most local concerns.   

 
 Thank you to the PC for their consideration of the above. 
 

Developer Services, Southern Water 

Page 19



 
Please see the attached extract from Southern Water records showing the approximate 
position of our existing public foul and surface water sewers within the development 
site. The exact position of the public assets must be determined on site by the 
applicant in consultation with Southern Water before the layout of the proposed 
development is finalised.  
- The 375 mm public foul sewer and public foul rising main sewer require a clearance 
of 3 metres on either side of the gravity sewer to protect it from construction works and 
to allow for future maintenance access. 
- The 300 mm public surface water sewer requires a clearance of 3 metres on either 
side of the public foul sewer to protect it from construction works and to allow for future 
maintenance access. 
- No development or tree planting should be carried out within 3 metres of the external 
edge of the public gravity sewer without consent from Southern Water.  
- No soakaways, swales, ponds, watercourses or any other surface water retaining or 
conveying features should be located within 5 metres of public or adoptable gravity 
sewers. 
- All existing infrastructure should be protected during the course of construction works. 
Please refer to: southernwater.co.uk/media/3011/stand-off-distances.pdf 
It is possible that a sewer now deemed to be public could be crossing the development 
site.  
Therefore, should any sewer be found during construction works, an investigation of 
the sewer will be required to ascertain its ownership before any further works 
commence on site. 
 
For further advice, please contact Southern Water, Southern House, Yeoman Road, 
Worthing, West Sussex, BN13 3NX (Tel: 0330 303 0119). 
Website: southernwater.co.uk or by email at: 
SouthernWaterPlanning@southernwater.co.uk 
 
Officer comment: The information supplied by Southern Water shows the nearest 
public sewers to lie within the highway of Fishery Lane. The proposals in this case will 
not require any excavation and lie approximately 4m from the highway and are not 
considered to have any impact on Southern Water’s assets as a result. 

 
6 Community Involvement  
 
 This application was publicised in accordance with the Council's Code of Practice for 

Publicity of Planning Applications approved at minute 207/6/92 (as amended), as a 
result of which the following publicity was undertaken: 

 
 Number of neighbour notification letters sent: 13 
 
 Number of site notices: Not applicable. 
 
 Statutory advertisement: Not applicable. 
 
 Number of representations received: 28  
  
 Number of representations received: 28 Objections in total, from 21 separate 

properties have been received.  A summary of the points raised are listed below, with 
most of the points covered in Section 7 below: 

 
 The proposed gates would be out of keeping within the south side of the 
streetscene of Fishery Lane 

Page 20



 Concerns regarding the design - an eyesore 
 Impact upon the neighbouring property in terms of loss of light to front kitchen 
window 
 The proposed gates will encourage the loitering and unsafe parking of delivery 
vehicles to the application site 
 Noise generated by gates during high winds (clattering noise) 
 The gates should be positioned closer to No.32 Fishery Lane 
 Obstruct access to side of neighbouring property for maintenance and repair 
Officer comment: This is not a planning consideration and a civil issue between the 
parties involved.  
 Restrict outlook to neighbouring property 
 Obstruct right of way, not comply with easement deeds 
Officer comment: This would be a civil issue with the parties involved; the proposed 
replacement gates would in any event be placed within the curtilage of the application 
site. 
 Hinder access for emergency services 
 Concerns regarding visibility for neighbouring property when reversing onto the 
highway 
Officer comment: The position of the access has not changed and the proposal 
should not material change the position when reversing onto the highway 
 Loss of open space 
Officer comment: The proposal would not result in any loss of open space, as the 
area where the gates are to be erected would be within a private hardsurfaced 
driveway 
 Loss of privacy to neighbouring property from delivery drivers using their access 
as a turning point 
Officer comment: This would be a civil issue between the owner of the property and 
the delivery companies.  
 Gives the impression of a high crime area.  
Officer comment: Fear of crime may be given some weight as a planning 
consideration when relevant to the proposals.  However, it is worth noting that there 
are other similar high gates within the immediate screetscene, which do not give the 
impression that the area suffers from high crime levels, with the proposal being the 
same.  
 The summer house in the garden is restricting access to drainage and southern 
water pipes 
Officer comment: The summer house is not part of this application and an 
enforcement investigation found the summer house to fall within permitted 
development.  Any further concerns would be a civil issue. 

  
7 Planning Considerations  
 
7.1 Having regard to the relevant policies of the development plan and all other material 

considerations it is considered that the main issues arising from this application are: 
 
 (i) Principle of development 

(ii) Appropriateness of design and impact on the character of the area 
(iii) Effect on neighbouring properties 

 
 (i) Principle of development  
 
7.2 The application site is located within the defined urban area, therefore development is 

considered acceptable in principle subject to development management criteria. 
 

Page 21



 (ii) Appropriateness of design and impact on the character of the area 
 
7.3    As stated above, the proposal would increase the height of the existing 1.5m high 

brick piers to 1.8m to be rendered white and to replace the 2 No. 1.2m high 5 bar 
gate, with a pair of 1.8m high solid timber gates.  The proposed gates would be 
stained to match the colour of the existing gate and adjacent fences. The replacement 
gates would be set back to the rear of the face of the piers by approximately 0.3m, 
with a 4m depth from the edge of the footway. This slight increase in depth would be 
an improvement over the current position.  

 
7.4    The proposed gates would continue to open inwards into the front driveway. There is 

sufficient space within the application site for vehicles to turn and leave the site in a 
forward gear, so as to ensure the safest access and visibility to the adjacent highway 
and pedestrian footway. 

 
7.5 The locking mechanism of the gate would be an automated system with both a remote 

control and a video/keypad intercom entry system. The arms to activate the opening 
would be located on the rear of the gate (with nothing visible from the road), and the 
intercom would be located on the north western pier.   The applicant has stated that 
should the access need to be used by emergency services in the event of an 
emergency the intercom system can be overridden and has a battery backup.    

 
7.6   The streetscene of Fishery Lane has a mixture of boundary frontages consisting of 

brick walls, hedging and fencing.   It was noted upon a site visit to the property that 
the properties opposite the application site (No.15 and No.17 Fishery Lane) have 
installed timber gates and fencing at an approximate height of 1.8m to their frontages 
(See Appendix F), and therefore it is considered that the raising of the brick piers and 
replacement timber gates would not be out of keeping within the mixed streetscene 
and would not have a harmful impact upon the visual amenity of the area. 

 
7.7 Furthermore, due to the existing built form and established soft and hard landscaping 

immediately adjacent to the application site, and the setting back of the gates from the 
public highway they would only be visible from public vantage points when in close 
proximity to the application site. Therefore, the visual impacts of the gate on the overall 
character and appearance of the area would be limited. 

 
7.8 The design and appearance of the proposal is therefore deemed appropriate in context 

to the main building and is therefore considered to be acceptable, meeting the 
requirements of Policy CS16 of the HBLP (Core Strategy).  It is considered that the 
scheme would not result in an adverse impact on the visual amenity of the locality. 

 
 (iii) Effect on neighbouring properties 
 
7.9 Concerns have been raised in relation to potential noise from the proposed gates 

during high winds and stormy weather.  This is not a material planning consideration.  
If during high winds and stormy weather the solid timber gates create a noise 
disturbance, evidence should be documented and a complaint raised to the 
Environmental Health Team. 

 
7.10 Concerns have also been raised in relation to highway safety from the parking of 

delivery drivers trying to access the application site.  However in the current situation 
at the site, if the existing gates are closed then there are likely to be similar delays in 

Page 22



such vehicles accessing the site. Furthermore, the proposal would increase the depth 
of the access set back from the highway by 0.3m – as such, if delivery vehicles were to 
be parked on the access waiting for the proposed gates to open, this would be a slight 
improvement over the current situation.  As to delivery vehicles parking on the 
highway, it is considered unlikely that this is the only property within the road and the 
locality where this is likely to occur, with an expectation that this practice may take 
place from time to time. If parking on the highway causes an obstruction, this would be 
a matter for the Police. 

 
7.11 A concern has been raised with regard to loss of light to a front window of an adjacent 

neighbouring property.  The proposed gates and piers would have an approximate 
2.8m separation distance from the nearest neighbouring window to the front eastern 
elevation. This neighbouring property is also screened by existing 1.3m high wooden 
fencing and 1.8m high shrubbery within their property along the shared boundary.  It 
is therefore considered any impact from the proposed gates and piers would be limited 
and acceptable.  

 
7.12 It is therefore concluded that the proposed increased height of the piers and 

replacement gates would not cause overshadowing or be overbearing to either of the 
adjoining neighbours, and would therefore not result in any unacceptable impacts on 
the amenity of neighbouring properties. 

 
7.13 Consequently, it is considered that the proposal will not appear overbearing or lead to 

a loss of light, outlook or privacy and would have limited and acceptable impact on the 
properties immediately adjacent to the application site and the properties opposite or 
to the rear, meeting the requirements of Policy CS16 of the HBLP (Core Strategy).   

 
8 Conclusion  
 
8.1 The proposed development is acceptable in principle, is appropriate in terms of design 

and its impact on the character of the area, would have a limited and acceptable 
impact on the neighbouring properties and would be acceptable in highway safety 
terms. On this basis the development is considered to accord with the development 
plan as a whole, with conditional planning permission recommended. 

 
 
9 RECOMMENDATION: 

 
That the Executive Head of Place be authorised to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION 
for application APP/23/00215 subject to the following conditions 
 

 
1 The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the 

date of this permission. 
Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

  
2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans: 
 
Application Form - Received 20 March 2023 
Location Plan - Received 20 March 2023 
Block Plan - Received 20 March 2023 
Existing Plan - Received 20 March 2023 

Page 23



Existing and Proposed Elevations - Received 20 March 2023 
Proposed Plan - Received 20 March 2023 
Proposed Location and Block Plan - Received 20 March 2023 
 
Reason: - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development. 

  
3 The external materials used shall be as indicated on the submitted forms and 

hereby approved plans, or shall match, in type, colour and texture, those of the 
existing building so far as practicable. 
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the area and having due regard to 
policy CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

  
4 The entrance gates hereby permitted located to the front boundary shall be 

inwards opening only, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority. 
Reason:  To prevent obstruction of the footway and to promote highway 
safety and having due regard to policy DM13 of the Havant Borough Local 
Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

  
 
 
Appendices: 
 

(A) Location Plan 
(B) Block Plan 
(C) Existing Floor Plan 
(D) Proposed Floor Plan 
(E) Existing and Proposed Elevations 
(F) Photographs of Similar Development  

Page 24



 

LOCATION PLAN APPENDIX A

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

BLOCK PLAN APPENDIX B

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 

EXISTING FLOOR PLAN APPENDIX C

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 

PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN APPENDIX D

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



 

EXISTING & PROPOSED ELEVATIONSAPPENDIX E

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

EXAMPLES OF SIMILAR DEVELOPMENT APPENDIX F1

No. 15

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

EXAMPLES OF SIMILAR DEVELOPMENT APPENDIX F2

No. 17

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
—————————————————————————————————————— 
 Site Address: Dale Lodge, 172 The Dale, Waterlooville, PO7 5JE   
 Proposal:          Erection of 1No. dwelling with 2No. car parking spaces, cycle & bin 

storage 
 Application Type:  Full Planning Permission 
 Application No: APP/23/00112  Expiry Date: 04/05/2023 
 Applicant: Mr Briar   
 Agent: Mr M Morris  

Mick Morris AADipl RIBA 
Chartered Architect 

Case Officer: Lesley Wells 

 Ward: Purbrook   
 
 Reason for Committee Consideration: At the request of Councillor Diamond 

 
Executive Head of Place Recommendation: GRANT PERMISSION 

—————————————————————————————————————— 
 
     Executive Summary 
 

The application site itself and its host dwelling compose a triangle of land with a 
vehicular access onto The Dale with a separate pedestrian access onto Widley 
Gardens. The site lies behind or to the side of existing residential development within 
The Dale, The Thicket and Widley Gardens. 

 
In terms of the principle of development, the site falls within an urban area where there 
is a presumption in favour of sustainable development. Planning law requires that 
applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 
The site is considered to be of a size to comfortably accommodate the proposal 
together with the associated activities in a sustainable location, without adversely 
impacting on neighbouring residential amenity or impacting on the character and 
appearance of the area. 

 
The proposal is acceptable in drainage and flood risk terms and the landscape and 
ecological measures are considered appropriate for the development. 

 
 The provision of car parking and cycle storage for both the host dwelling and the 

proposal accords with Havant’s Design Guide SPD and the access to the site is 
considered acceptable on highway safety grounds. 

 
 The proposal would make a very modest addition to the Council’s housing figures 

which is supported at both the local and national level. 
 
 The Council has conducted a Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) of the 

proposed development under Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2017, this includes an Appropriate Assessment (AA) under 
Regulations 63. The screening under Regulations 63(1) (a) found that there was likely 
to be a significant effect on recreational pressure and water quality on the Chichester 
and Langstone Harbours Special Protection Area (SPA).  

 
 The subsequent AA included a package of measures:  
 

Page 39

Agenda Item 5(b)



 As set out in the Solent Recreation Mitigation Strategy, an appropriate scale of 
mitigation in respect of recreational pressure; and  

 
 As set out in the Position Statement and Mitigation Plan for Nutrient Neutral 

Development, an appropriate scale of mitigation.  
 

 The AA concluded that this is sufficient to remove the significant effect on the SPA 
which would otherwise have been likely to occur. This conclusion has been accepted 
by Natural England.  

 
 The applicant has entered into a legal agreement to secure the mitigation packages for 

the Solent Recreation Mitigation Strategy and for nutrients. 
 
 Therefore, the development is considered to accord with the development plan when 

considered as a whole and the National Planning Policy Framework and conditional 
planning permission is recommended. 

 
1 Site Description  
 
1.1 Dale Lodge is a chalet bungalow, with a detached garage. The application site itself 

and its host dwelling comprise a triangle of land with a vehicular access onto The Dale 
with a separate pedestrian access onto Widley Gardens. Th vehicular access also 
provides access to the rear of several properties in The Dale. The applicant is the 
owner of the vehicular access, with some of the properties backing onto this access, 
having a right of way across it. 

 
1.2 The site lies behind or to the side of existing residential development within The Dale, 

The Thicket and Widley Gardens. The residential surrounding area is made up of a 
mixture of designs, styles and sizes. 

 
1.3 There are mature trees and hedges along the northern boundary, with trees and 

vegetation along the other boundaries, with a large Cedar of Lebanon Tree to the north 
east of the site. A tree the subject of a Tree Preservation Order within the site was 
replaced with an Oak Tree, which following a recent inspection showed that since 
being planted it has died. There is also a Group TPO near the entrance onto The Dale.  
 

1.4 The application site area is advised to be 823sqm in total, with the building and garden 
footprint comprising approximately 357sqm of that total. The site falls within flood zone 
1 and would remain so with climate change in 2115.  

 
1.5 The level of the site falls to the northwest.  
 
2 Planning History 
  

02/53306/001 - Fell Oak tree within Group G1 of TPO 863 and treat stump. Refused 
17/01/2003 
92/53306/000 - Reduce crown of Turkey Oak covered by TPO 863 by 30%, 
18/05/1992. 

 
3 Proposal  
 
3.1 The proposal is for the erection of 1No 3-bedroom, chalet style dwelling with a raised 

eaves height and featuring a dormer in the western elevation, following the 
sub-division of the existing plot. Two parking spaces are proposed to the rear of the 

Page 40



chalet bungalow to the north west, with vehicular access from The Dale. The cycle 
storage would be to the rear of the chalet bungalow and following an amended plan 
the bin storage is sited further to the north near the retained pedestrian access onto 
Widley Gardens. 

 
3.2 The design of the proposed dwelling takes its theme from the host dwelling. It would 

have the same 40° pitched roof with identical tile covering. There would be plain white 
rendered elevations, with the upper element of grey horizontal cedral boarding. 
Window and door materials and colours would also follow the host dwelling. 

 
3.3 The site’s western boundary would be formed mainly of a Beech hedge, with a section 

of 1.2m high brick wall. There would be a 2m high brick wall on the southern boundary, 
with 2m close boarded fencing on the other boundaries. 

 
3.4 Changes to the scheme made during the consideration of the application include: 
 
 Tree protection measures to include the protected tree (T1) at the entrance 
 Relocation of bin storage to the north of the site. 
 Additional tree and hedge planting for the site.  
 
4 Policy Considerations  
  
 National Planning Policy Framework 
 Havant Borough Council Borough Design Guide SPD December 2011         
 Havant Borough Council Parking SPD July 2016 

 
Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) March 2011 
CS11 
 
CS14 

(Protecting and Enhancing the Special Environment and Heritage of 
Havant Borough) 
(Efficient Use of Resources) 

CS16 (High Quality Design) 
CS17 (Concentration and Distribution of Development within the Urban Areas) 
CS20 (Transport and Access Strategy) 
CS21 (Developer Requirements) 
CS9 (Housing) 
DM10 (Pollution) 
DM13 (Car and Cycle Parking on Residential Development) 
 
Havant Borough Local Plan (Allocations) July 2014 
AL1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development) 
DM24 (Recreational Disturbance to Special Protected Areas (SPAs) from 

Residential Development) 
AL2 (Urban Area Boundaries and Undeveloped Gaps between Settlements) 
   

 Listed Building Grade: Not applicable. 
 Conservation Area: Not applicable. 
 
5 Statutory and Non Statutory Consultations  
  

Arboriculturalist - No Objection 
 
When looking at this one I wondered if the agent would accept the addition of tree 
protection fencing to be included around T1 on the entrance to the access from The 
Dale and the trees subject to TPO 0863? 
 

Page 41



This could be agreed as prior to commencement condition for Tree Protection but I 
didn't know if the agent wished to amend the plans at this stage? 
 
I would also suggest some changes to the landscaping proposed. Whilst the removal of 
the trees would be acceptable could the proposed oak be replaced with a hornbeam 
(less water demanding tree) and the proposed alder be replaced with holly and could 
additional trees, such as a birch be incorporated, where possible along the western 
boundary? Again, these could be secured by prior to commencement condition? 
 
Officer Comment: Following on from the above consultation, the agent has confirmed 
protective fencing to be included around T1 at the entrance and updated the plan 
accordingly. The agent has also agreed to replace the oak and alder with a hornbeam 
and a small cherry tree, together with an extension of the beech hedge along part of 
the western boundary.  

 
Building Control 
 
Final comments 
 
It appears that the applicant is trying to use Widley Gardens as the fire service access 
to the property. This is possible in principle but the applicant is going to need to 
demonstrate the following 

1) That the fire service will know to use Widley Gardens for access, especially if 
the new property’s address is The Dale 

2) That all points with the new property is within 45m of the location of the fire 
service vehicle, which needs to be measured as the fire service would run a 
hose or walk – not through a wall or tree etc 

3) That adequate access is provided from Widley Gardens into the new property 
 
Any application made under the Building Regulations would need to demonstrate all of 
these issues and would be subject to consultation with Hampshire Fire and Rescue 
Service. 
 
I note that the applicant has indicated a bin store on the plan, however the bin store 
need to be within 25m of the Council’s bin collection point, which is not shown on the 
plans. 
 
Officer Comment: The agent has advised that in the event of a fire access to the site 
would be from Widley Gardens, to be agreed with the Fire Service. 
 
A revised plan has been provided, which shows the bin and recycle waste storage to 
be within 25m of the Council's bin collection. 
 
Initial comments 
 
We are unable to provide a full response to this consultation the plans provided failed 
to open properly. I can advise that there is no public sewer shown on the map of 
sewers within 3m of the proposed building  
 
It should be demonstrated that adequate access for the fire service will be provided. 
The road should be at least 3.7m wide for the full length and able to support at least a 
12.5 tonne vehicle. If the access road is over 20m long adequate turning should be 
provided for a fire service vehicle. 
 
It should also be demonstrated that adequate provision has been made for the storage 

Page 42



and collection of solid waste as detailed in Approved Document H. 
 

 
Community Infrastructure - Comment 
 
CIL Liable: http://www.havant.gov.uk/community-infrastructure-levy-charging-schedule. 
The applicant has made an application for self build relief. 
Additionally, pending a response from Natural England on the HRA, instructions should 
be passed by the Case Officer to the CIL Team to: 
 
(a) Issue the Solent Recreation Mitigation Strategy Unilateral Undertaking, based on 
the number of additional dwellings and their respective number of bedrooms. See 
Unilateral Undertaking - Solent Recreation Mitigation Strategy | Havant Borough 
Council 
b) Issue the Nutrient Neutrality Unilateral Undertaking. See 
https://www.havant.gov.uk/nitrogendevelopers 

 
Former Councillor Gary Hughes - No Objection 
For the purposes of transparency, I declare that until 31st March, I live adjacent to the 
proposed site. I have taken the time to read the application form submitted for the 
construction of the proposed dwelling in the garden of 174a The Dale. The form clearly 
states that there will be no 'new or altered vehicular access to or from the public 
highway'. In addition, the arboricultural survey report indicates that the linear group of 
four Leyland Cypress which are visible from (and front) Widley Gardens have an 
estimated remaining contribution (ERC) of 10+ years. Minor works using a mechanical 
digger have been undertaken in the past on the site, during the renovation of the 
existing property. This demonstrates that the vehicular access from The Dale is 
suitable for HGV's. I can see no material reason why the application would be refused. 
No property will be overlooked, no property will lose light (often cited in public 
comments) there will be no highways issues for Widley Gardens and given the height 
of the Leylandi, it will be almost invisible. A similar property has been built in the garden 
of No1, The Thicket (literally just around the corner) so local precedent has been set. 
My one concern is the 'Scots pine', a beautiful specimen located on the site. I trust 
every effort will be taken to ensure that the root protection area is clearly defined and 
adhered to, during the construction phase. Finally, a condition that all materials 
entering or leaving the site must be via the established highway access would be 
helpful. 
 
Officer Comment: Former Cllr Hughes was a Ward Councillor at the time of the 
application’s submission. 

 
Councillor Husky Patel - No Comment 

 
Councillor Ms C Diamond - Purbrook Ward - Objection  
My reasons for having this planning application go to committee are model 
reasons: 
 
1. R30 not in keeping with the current street scene 
2. R111 Would set a precedent contrary to policy CS16 core strategy. 
3. R133 Size and shape would be detrimental to the area 
4. R134 not in keeping with the surrounding area 
5. R135 undesirable backland development detrimental to the area  
6. R136 Undesirable due to unsatisfactory access. 
7. R165 The development would likely encourage parking of vehicles on the 
public highway  

Page 43



8.  R169 The access out to the main highway would be a cause for concern to 
other road users contrary to policies CS16, CS19, CS20, and DM13/14 of the 
HBC local plan. 
 
Councillor Ryan Brent - No Comment 
 
Officer Comment: Cllr Brent has become a Ward Councillor during the application 
process. 

 
Council Ecologist - No Objection 
Thank you for the photos. Having reviewed the photos I would not consider the site to 
be of ecological value. In view of the arb report, the very few trees to be felled are not 
likely to have bat roosting features given their size, management and maturity. 
Therefore, I would not consider ecological survey work necessary. I would advise a 
nesting bird informative and enhancements to be conditioned.  
 
Nesting Bird Informative  
 
Birds’ nests, when occupied or being built, receive legal protection under the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended).  It is highly advisable to undertake clearance 
of potential bird nesting areas outside the bird nesting season, which is generally seen 
as extending from March to the end of August, although may extend longer depending 
on local conditions.  If there is absolutely no alternative to doing the work in during this 
period then a thorough, careful and quiet examination of the affected area must be 
carried out before clearance starts.  If occupied nests are present then work must stop 
in that area, a suitable (approximately 5m) stand-off maintained, and clearance can 
only recommence once the nest becomes unoccupied of its own accord. 
 
The site lies is within 5.6km of the Solent and Southampton Water SPA/Ramsar site 
and the development will lead to a net increase in residential accommodation. 
Therefore, the applicant has agreed to mitigate for the increased recreational pressure 
to the Solent Recreation Mitigation Strategy.  
 
If you are minded to grant permission I would advise the following condition is added to 
the planning permission: 
 
Development shall proceed in accordance with the European Sites Avoidance and 
Mitigation Checklist and recommendations made within the Biodiversity Assessment 
report. In addition, a bat roost enhancement shall be included within the new roof 
design or to a mature tree. Reason: To ensure biodiversity is protected and enhanced 
in accordance with the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, Habitat and Species 
Regulations 2017, NERC Act 2006, NPPF and Policy CS 11 of the Havant Borough 
Core Strategy March 2011. 
 
Officer Comment: If permission is granted, the above condition and informative are 
recommended to be included in the decision notice. 

 
Developer Services, Southern Water - Comment 
Southern Water requires a formal application for a connection to the public foul sewer 
to be made by the applicant or developer. 
 
To make an application visit Southern Water's Get Connected service: 
developerservices.southernwater.co.uk and please read our New Connections 
Charging Arrangements documents which are available on our website via the 
following link: 

Page 44



southernwater.co.uk/developing-building/connection-charging-arrangements 
 
The Council’s Building Control officers or technical staff should be asked to comment 
on the adequacy of soakaways to dispose of surface water from the proposed 
development. 
 
It is possible that a sewer now deemed to be public could be crossing the development 
site.  Therefore, should any sewer be found during construction works, an 
investigation of the sewer will be required to ascertain its ownership before any further 
works commence on site. 
 
For further advice, please contact Southern Water, Southern House, Yeoman Road, 
Worthing, West Sussex, BN13 3NX (Tel: 0330 303 0119). 
Website: southernwater.co.uk or by email at: 
SouthernWaterPlanning@southernwater.co.uk 
 
Officer Comment: If permission is granted the above would be an informative on the 
decision notice. 

 
Hampshire Highways - No Objection 
In regard to application APP/23/00112, as the application is for 5 dwellings or less, 
there is no required change of vehicle access onto the highway, and the development 
does not access directly onto a classified road, HCC's Highway Standing Advice should 
be referred to in the first instance. This can be viewed via the following link under the 
heading Consultation with the Highway Authority - 
https://www.hants.gov.uk/transport/developers/consultation 
 
However, in regard to the application, having undertaken an initial review, there would 
be no objection to the proposals from a highways perspective. 
 
Whilst the vehicle access is not necessarily in an ideal location, it is existing and works 
without known incident for the dwellings it already serves. Its initial width is also 
sufficient to cater for vehicles passing (accessing and egressing the site at the same 
time) off of the highway to avoid obstruction. 
 
Onwards, parking levels and turning space on site are sufficient for use. 
 

Landscape Team - No Objection 
I have commented on this application on April with no landscape objection. Having 
reviewed the site layout plan I still have no objections.  
 
Natural England - No Objection 
SUMMARY OF NATURAL ENGLAND’S ADVICE 
NO OBJECTION - SUBJECT TO APPROPRIATE MITIGATION BEING SECURED 
We consider that without appropriate mitigation the application would have an adverse 
effect on the integrity of: 
• Solent Maritime Special Area of Conservation (SAC) 
• Solent and Southampton Waters Special Protection Area (SPA) and Ramsar 
• Portsmouth Harbour SPA and Ramsar 
• Chichester and Langstone Harbour SPA and Ramsar 
• Solent and Isle of Wight Lagoons SAC 
 
We advise that an appropriate planning condition or obligation is attached to any 
planning permission to secure these measures:  

Page 45



 
• Consideration of this project’s effects on total nitrogen and/or total phosphorus 
nutrient loading within the Solent, including a complete nutrient budget calculation 
• Securing mitigation measures to address any nutrient impacts prior to occupation of 
the proposed development, including appropriately funded management and 
monitoring, and details of how the measures will be secured for the lifetime of the 
development 
• Securing mitigation against adverse effects from recreational disturbance on the 
Solent SPA sites, as agreed by the Solent Recreation Mitigation Partnership (SRMP), 
also known as Bird Aware Solent - applicant to comply with the policy and the Bird 
Aware Definitive Strategy.  
 
Natural England’s further advice on designated sites/landscapes and advice on other 
natural environment issues is set out below. 
 
Natural England notes that your authority, as competent authority, has undertaken an 
appropriate assessment of the proposal in accordance with regulation 63 of the 
Conservation of Species and Habitats Regulations 2017 (as amended). Natural 
England is a statutory consultee on the appropriate assessment stage of the Habitats 
Regulations Assessment process. 
 
Your appropriate assessment dated 14 June 2023 concludes that your authority is able 
to ascertain that the proposal will not result in adverse effects on the integrity of any of 
the sites in question. Having considered the assessment, and the measures proposed 
to mitigate for all identified adverse effects that could potentially occur as a result of the 
proposal, Natural England advises that we concur with the assessment conclusions, 
providing that all mitigation measures are appropriately secured in any planning 
permission given.  
 
Further advice on mitigation 
 
Deterioration of the water environment 
 
We note that this application is supported by a nutrient budget dated 01 February 2023 
Nutrient budget calculation We note that the nutrient budget calculation available on 
the planning portal is not completed to Stage 4 as the land use is not in the correct row 
at stage 3. However, if corrected it gives an output at stage 4 of 0.95 Total Nitrogen 
(TN) per year, rather than the 0.90 that is stated in your Appropriate Assessment.  
 
We recommend that the budget calculation is checked and revised as needed. 
Provided the competent authority is assured and satisfied that the site areas used in 
the nutrient budget calculation are correct and that the existing land uses are 
appropriately precautionary, then Natural England raises no further concerns with the 
nutrient budget. 
  
Recreational disturbance - Solent Special Protected Areas (SPAs)  
  
This application is within 5.6km of Solent and Southampton Water SPA/Ramsar site 
and will lead to a net increase in residential accommodation. Natural England is aware 
that Southampton City Council have adopted planning policy to mitigate against  
adverse effects from recreational disturbance on the Solent SPA sites, as agreed by 
the Solent Recreation Mitigation Partnership (SRMP), also known as Bird Aware 
Solent. 
  
Provided that the applicant is complying with the policy and the Bird Aware Definitive 

Page 46



Strategy, Natural England are satisfied that the applicant has mitigated against the 
potential adverse effects of the development on the integrity of the European site(s), 
and has no objection to this aspect of the application.  
  
Please note, your authority’s appropriate assessment should reflect the current 
developer contribution rates, which are updated every April in line with the Retail Price 
Index. 
 
We do note that stage 3 of your appropriate assessment states that contributions to 
SRMP (Bird Aware Solent) will be made for 6 new dwellings, yet the proposal is for 1 
new dwelling. This may therefore need revising.  
 
Other Advice  
 
Further general advice on consideration of protected species and other natural 
environment issues is provided at Annex A.  
 
Should the developer wish to discuss the detail of measures to mitigate the effects 
described above with Natural England, we recommend that they seek advice through 
our Discretionary Advice Service. 
 
For any queries regarding this letter, for new consultations, or to provide further 
information on this consultation please send your correspondences to 
consultations@naturalengland.org.uk. 
 
Officer Comment: The correct contribution was secured for both the SRMS and 
nitrates. 
 
Nitrates Team - No Objection 
I can confirm there is sufficient capacity in the Council’s strategic mitigation scheme to 
accommodate the application proposals.  
 
It should be noted that there is limited capacity remaining in the Council's mitigation 
scheme at Warblington Farm. There is alternative mitigation available from third party 
providers in order to avoid and mitigate the water quality impact arising out of the 
proposed development. The details of other schemes have been published on the 
Partnership for South Hampshire's website 
at:  https://www.push.gov.uk/work/mitigation-schemes-available-to-developers/ 
 

 
Waste Services Manager - No Comment 
 

 
6 Community Involvement  
 
 This application was publicised in accordance with the Council's Code of Practice for 

Publicity of Planning Applications approved at minute 207/6/92 (as amended), as a 
result of which the following publicity was undertaken: 

 
 Number of neighbour notification letters sent: 21 
 
 Number of site notices 2 
 
 Statutory advertisement: Not applicable. 
 

Page 47



 Number of representations received: 12 
  
 Representations 
  
 The following is a summary of the representations received.  
 

Character and appearance of the area 

 Over development 
 Further congestion 
 Detrimental to the local neighbourhood and environment 
 Hedgerows an integral part of the area 
 
Amenity 
 
 Overlooking 
 Loss of privacy 
 Removal of trees – affect view from property 
 Loss of view – detrimental to enjoyment of property 
 Noise & disturbance from construction & vehicles 
 Time restrictions on deliveries etc. 
 Noise from visitors and increased traffic 
 Increase in CO2 levels 
 Car headlights a problem 
 
Highways & Parking 
 
 Exacerbate existing on-street parking problems within area 
 Visitors to Dale Lodge have blocked driveways in Widley Gardens 
 Limited access to, and limited parking for the proposed build/proposal 
 Increased traffic in area and track 
 Lack of space for delivery vehicles to turn on site – must reverse out – highway 

hazard 
 Increase in traffic 
 Use of track by HGV may cause damage to properties. 
 Track unsuitable for HGVs 
 In highway safety terms access to track unsafe close to school entrance – 

improvements would result in the loss of trees. 
 Directly outside the track entrance double yellow lines deemed unsafe for parking 

of vehicles.  
 Exacerbate a dangerous highway situation. 
 Inadequate access from The Thicket highway safety issues 
 Pedestrian access onto Widley Gardens – unnecessary and intrusive - opens onto 

hammer head – area should be free of parking 
 Condition construction vehicles must use access from The Dale 

 
 Drainage/flooding  
 

 Concerns over flood risks – surface water and foul 
 Loss of trees – worsen drainage/flooding issues 
 Local infrastructure cannot support proposal 
 Area has high levels of standing water 
 Exacerbate surface water issues 

Page 48



 Not an area of low flood risk – SW & HCC aware of this 
 Properties in Widley Gardens suffer from drainage issues in gardens – foul and 

surface water. 
 SW has investigated but problem not resolved - proposal would exacerbate this, 

resulting in home being flooded 
 No further development until flooding issue resolved. 

 
 Ecology & Trees 
 

 Loss of biodiversity 
 Loss of trees – adverse impact on birds 
 Impact on bats 
 Loss of wildlife, flora & fauna 
 Loss of hedgerows - integral part of the area 
 
Ownership and rights  

 Site not all within ownership of applicant, which includes a Sycamore tree 

Other Matters 

 Would permission be given to build more houses on the site?  
 Planning permission previously refused for the site. 
 Concerns over lack of access to garage 
 The track borders several properties - council documents advised the track will 

need to be at least 3.7 meter in width – result in trees etc. having to be removed. 
 Would the removal of trees impact on other buildings? 
 Unclear if trees & vegetation along the track to be removed 
 Claim part of site, is not within the applicant's ownership. 
 Pedestrian access unnecessary – not a legal access – use of would severely 

disrupt the quiet enjoyment and cause aggravation to residents. 
 Assurances that construction work undertaken in safe & considerate manner 
 Assurances no changes to our access 
 Track reinstated to former condition 
 Undesirable precedent 
 

Officer comment: Many of the issues raised are addressed in Section 7 below. 
However the following additional comments are provided: 

The applicant's agent has advised all the site is within his client's ownership, which is 
disputed by a third party. Any action would be a civil matter between the parties 
involved.  
 
Damage to third parties’ properties or alterations to accesses during the construction 
stage would be a private matter between the parties involved. 
 
Reinstatement of the track would be a private matter. 
 
In planning terms, the existing pedestrian access onto Widley Gardens, which is an 
unclassified road, does not require planning permission, as it is permitted 
development. Furthermore, the access appears to have been provided more than 4 
years ago and if it had been subject to planning control, would now be immune from 
such control. 

Page 49



The LPA is not aware of any proposal to erect more houses on the site, which due to 
its size is considered unlikely on current information available. That said, any future 
application for the site would be considered on its individual merits. An application on 
18 May 1989 was refused for 3 detached dwellings with integral double garage on the 
site with access from Widley Gardens, due to the loss of a protected tree and the 
overlooking from a two storey dwelling on plot 3 of adjacent residential properties. That 
application was materially different to the current application being considered. 
 
The driveway would need to be 3.7m wide to accommodate a fire engine, in an 
emergency. It has been advised, however, that the Fire Service would attend any fire 
at the site from the pedestrian access off Widley Gardens. 
 
Vehicles that currently use the accessway would at times use their headlights, which 
may have an impact on neighbours' properties, for brief periods of times. The proposal 
for one additional dwelling would not materially change this. 
 
As to precedent each application must be considered on its individual merits.  
 

7 Planning Considerations  
 
 Habitat Regulations Assessment & Appropriate Assessment     
 

The Council, as competent authority under Regulation 63(1)(a) of the Conservation of 
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (The Habitats Regulations), has conducted a 
Habitats Regulations Assessment (HA) of the proposed development. 
 
Recreational Pressure 
 
The project being assessed would result in a net increase of dwellings within 5.6km of 
the Solent SPAs. In line with Policy DM24 of adopted Havant Borough Local Plan 
(Allocations)  and the Solent Recreation Mitigation Strategy, a permanent significant 
effect on the Solent SPAs due to increase in recreational disturbance as a result of the 
new development, is likely. As such, in order to lawfully be permitted, the development 
will need to include a package of avoidance and mitigation measures. 
 
The applicant has proposed a mitigation package based on the methodology in the 
Developer Contributions Guide. The scale of the proposed mitigation package would 
remove the likelihood of a significant effect. The applicant has entered into a legal 
agreement to secure the mitigation package in line with the requirements of the 
Habitats Regulations and Policy DM24.  
 
Water quality 
 
There is existing evidence of high levels of nitrogen and phosphorus in the water 
environment with evidence of eutrophication at some designated sites. The PUSH 
Integrated Water Management Strategy has identified that there is uncertainty as to 
whether new housing development can be accommodated without having a 
detrimental impact on the designated sites within the Solent. Therefore, a significant 
effect on the Chichester and Langstone Harbours SPA, Solent Maritime SAC and 
Solent and Dorset Coast pSPA cannot be ruled out. 
 
Natural England have produced ‘Advice on achieving nutrient neutrality for new 
development in the Solent region’. This sets out a methodology to calculate the 
nutrient emissions from a development site. The applicant has used this methodology 
to calculate the nutrient emissions from the site. This calculation has confirmed that 

Page 50



the site will emit a net nutrient load into European Sites. The Position Statement and 
Mitigation Plan for Nutrient Neutral Development sets out a mitigation package which 
will mitigate the impact that this development would have on the designated European 
Site. The applicant has entered into a legal agreement to secure the mitigation 
package.  
 
Appropriate Assessment conclusion  
  

 The Habitats Regulations Assessment concluded that the avoidance and mitigation 
packages proposed in the Appropriate Assessment are sufficient to remove the 
significant effects on the Solent’s European Sites which would otherwise have been 
likely to occur. The HRA was subject to consultation with Natural England as the 
appropriate nature conservation body under Regulation 63(3) who have confirmed that 
they agree with the findings of the assessment. The applicant has entered into a legal 
agreement to secure the mitigation packages. 

 
7.1 In other respects, having regard to the relevant policies of the development plan and 

all other material considerations it is considered that the main issues arising from this 
application are: 

 
 (i) Principle of development 

(ii) Impact upon the character and appearance of the area 
(iii) Impact upon residential amenity 
(iv) Access and parking 
(v) Impact on trees 
(vi) Impact on ecology 
(vii) Flood Risk & Drainage 
(viii) CIL 
 

 (i) Principle of development  
 
7.2 The application site is situated within a sustainable urban area where further 

development is considered acceptable subject to the usual development management 
criteria. The addition of one new chalet bungalow in such a location would contribute, 
albeit very modestly, to the Council's overall housing requirement. The Council, at the 
time of writing the report, cannot demonstrate a 5-year land supply of housing, which is 
currently only 1.81 years.  
 

7.3 The Council has identified that it has a finite amount of undeveloped land and 
environmental designations in the borough which limit opportunities for new 
development. Within this context, the Council’s strategy for the delivery of new growth 
is to concentrate development within the urban areas where there are existing facilities 
and where new development would have the least impact on the range of highly 
protected designations within the Borough. To support this approach, Policy CS17 of 
the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) (2011) sets out that development will 
be permitted that makes the most effective use of land in the borough.  

 
7.4 Policy CS9 of the Core Strategy supports housing proposals which achieve a suitable 

density of development for the location, considering accessibility to public transport 
and proximity to employment, shops and services in addition to respecting the 
surrounding landscape, character and built form. The supporting text of the policy sets 
out density thresholds, and in this regard the proposal would represent a low-density 
development. 

 
7.5 The adopted Local Plan policies echo the advice in the National Planning Policy 

Page 51



Framework (NPPF). 
 
7.6 Paragraph 119 of the NPPF sets out that planning decisions should promote an 

effective use of land in meeting the need for homes and other uses, while 
safeguarding and improving the environment. 

 
7.7 Paragraph 124 of the Framework supports development that makes efficient use of 

land where it considers the desirability of maintaining an area’s prevailing character. 
Policies CS17 and CS9 together are broadly consistent with this approach.  

 
7.8 The Framework goes further and sets out at Paragraph 123 that where there is an 

existing or anticipated shortage of land for meeting identified housing needs, it is 
especially important that planning decisions avoid homes being built at low densities 
and ensure that development makes optimal use of the potential of each site.  

 
7.9 The principle of making more efficient use of an existing urban sustainable site is 

therefore supported having regard to the surrounding character and built form, albeit 
that the acceptability of the scheme put forward will turn on consideration of several 
detailed planning considerations as set out below. 
 
(ii) Impact upon the character and appearance of the area 

 
7.10 The application site and the host dwelling comprise a triangle of land with a vehicular 

access onto The Dale with a separate pedestrian access onto Widley Gardens, which 
is currently existing. The surrounding residential area is made up of a mixture of 
designs, styles and sizes. 

 
7.11 The design of the proposed dwelling takes its theme from the host dwelling and would 

be of a traditional design. It would have the same 40° pitched roof with the same plain 
roof tiles, with plain rendered white elevations, with the upper element of grey 
horizontal cedral boarding. Window and door materials and colours would also follow 
the host dwelling, which would be grey and grey blue. The pitched roof would be half 
hipped at either end and there would be an element of skilling within the bedroom 
spaces of the proposal. 

 
7.12 The dwelling would comply with national space standards for a three-bedroom four 

person dwelling with a floor area of 93sqm. The accommodation comprises of one 
double bedroom, two single bedrooms and family bathroom on the first floor, and on 
the ground floor a living room, WC and a dining/kitchen with bifold doors that open 
onto the rear garden. The size of the building would be 6.9 m high, 5.8m wide and 10m 
long.   
 

7.13 As to thermal performance, this would accord with Part L in the current building 
regulations, which would result in a high level of passive insulation. As to photovoltaic 
panels on the roof, this would be acceptable to the applicant and if permission was 
granted, would be the subject of a condition.  
 

7.14 The design of the dwelling would comply with Part M of the building regulations 
regarding disabled access. 

 
7.15 The site’s western boundary would be formed mainly of a new Beech hedge, with a 

section of 1.2m high brick wall. There would be a 2m high brick wall on the southern 
boundary, with 2m close boarded fencing on the other boundaries. 
 

7.16 The cycle storage would be on the eastern boundary, with refuse storage on the 

Page 52



northern boundary, with refuse collection from Widley Gardens.   
 
7.17 The site is set back off a long private driveway (by approximately 40m), behind 

properties that front The Dale and The Thicket. Due to the separation distance from 
The Dale and existing properties, views of the site would be very limited from the 
public realm. As to Widley Gardens, the existing pedestrian access would be retained 
for the proposal, which is currently used by the host dwelling. Due to the northern 
boundary treatment, which is a 2m close boarded fence, with an existing Leylandii 
hedge screen over 3m in height along part of the boundary and the separation 
distance of the chalet bungalow from Widley Gardens (approximately 16m from No. 22 
Widley Gardens), views of the proposal would be very restricted from the public realm. 

 
7.18 Due to the concealed nature of the site, it is considered that the proposal would not 

materially impact on the character and appearance of the area, and would accord with 
policy CS16 of the Core Strategy. 
 
(iii) Impact upon residential amenity 
 
Impact on existing residents 
 

7.19 Representations have been received about the potential loss of privacy, overlooking  
and disturbance by the proposal.  The development is for a chalet bungalow, with a 
height of 6.9 m, with a dormer window in the western elevation. 

 
7.20 As to the host dwelling this lies to the east of the proposal, with the front of this 

dwelling facing west, onto the rear of the proposal. The host dwelling’s rear garden lies 
to the east, which is an irregular shape, with a depth at its widest point of 23m. The 
host dwelling would also retain a front garden, with a separation distance of 
approximately 16m from the proposal, with a 2m boundary made up of 2m high close 
boarded fencing. 

 
7.21 The eastern elevation of the proposal would have a first-floor window which would 

service a staircase and landing. If permission was granted this window would be 
conditioned to be obscurely glazed, to prevent overlooking of the host dwelling. 

 
7.22 The vehicular access to the host dwelling and its garage would remain, together with 

an appropriate level of car parking.  
 
7.23 It is considered that the proposal would not significantly impact on the residential 

amenity of the host dwelling. 
 

7.24 As to the dwellings in The Dale that back onto the application site, these are Nos 174 
to 178A. The properties most likely to be impacted by the built development would be 
numbers 176 & 178. The separation distances from these two properties would be 
approximately 24m, which exceeds the distance required in Havant’s Design SPD, of 
20m. These properties are also at an angle to the proposal, which would future limit 
overlooking of windows.  

 
7.25 As to the intensification of the use of the access way to the site the properties most 

likely to be affected are 174 The Dale, with windows overlooking the driveway, and 1a 
The Thicket, due to their adjacent locations, albeit it is acknowledged that other 
properties that back onto the site from The Dale may be impacted to some degree. It is 
acknowledged that during the construction stage, noise and disturbance would be 
generated at times. If this was found to be a significant issue, this would fall under 
Environment Health legislation to control. That said, once the development is 

Page 53



complete, the intensification of the use of the access by the occupation of one 
additional 3 bed dwelling would be unlikely to materially impact on the residential 
amenities of these properties. 

 
7.26 Concerning the properties in The Thicket that back onto the site, there would be a 

minimum separation distance between the rear of these properties and the flank wall 
of the proposal of 30m. The flank wall of the proposal has two windows at ground floor 
to service a living room and a bedroom window at first floor. The 30m separation 
distance exceeds that required in Havant’s Design Guide SPD, which is 20m. 
Therefore, the proposal would be unlikely to materially impact on the residential 
amenity of the occupiers of these properties. 

 
7.27 Regarding the properties in Widley Gardens, the closest one would be 22 Widley 

Gardens, which is sited to the rear of the site. Along the boundary between 22 Widley 
Gardens there is a 2m high close boarded fence, with the land falling in the north west 
corner. The development and 22 Widley Gardens would not be directly opposite one 
another but would be at an angle with a separation distance, between the side wall of 
No.22 and the north elevation of the new dwelling of approximately 14m at the closest 
point, which exceeds the requirement of 10m in Havant’s Design SPD. Therefore, the 
proposal would be unlikely to materially impact on the residential amenity of the 
occupiers of 22 Widley Gardens.  

  
 Impact on future residents 

 
7.28 The size of this 3-bed property would comply with the Government’s Technical housing 

standards – nationally described space standard and would be built to energy efficient 
standards.    

 
7.29 The rear garden to the proposal would be to the north, with an average depth of 13m. 

This would exceed the minimum requirement in Havant's Design Guide SPD of 10m. 
To the east of the site the garden area would be 4m to the edge of the boundary with 
the host dwelling, with over 2m to the front boundary to the west, which would benefit 
from a replacement Beech hedge and tree planting, if permission is granted.  To the 
south the proposal would be over 2 m from the site’s boundary. 

 
7.30 The proposal would have two parking spaces and a turning area to the rear, which 

complies with Havant’s Car Parking SPD and would benefit from an EV Charging 
point. 

 
7.31 The proposal would provide a satisfactory level of accommodation for future occupiers, 

in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy. 
 
(iv) Access and parking 
 

7.32 Representations have been received regarding highway safety issues and the existing 
access, and the parking and accessing of construction vehicles to the site.  

 
 Access 
 
7.33 Accompanying the application is a Highway Technical Note, which shows that the sight 

lines for the existing access are 2m x 43m in both directions, which accords with 
Hampshire Highway's Standing Advice for the proposal. No changes are proposed to 
the access. 

 
7.34 Access to the site is off a private driveway. The access also provides rear accesses to 

Page 54



properties fronting onto The Dale. There is also a turning area for vehicles at the 
northern end of the access, with garages from properties in The Dale fronting this 
area.  

 
7.35  The Highway Authority has been consulted over the proposal, and have raised no 

objection on highway safety grounds, with the initial width of the vehicle access 
considered "... sufficient to cater for vehicles passing (accessing and egressing the site 
at the same time) off the highway to avoid obstruction."  Therefore, the use of the 
existing access for the proposal is not considered to raise a highway safety issue.  

 
7.36  As to construction vehicles visiting the site, it is recommended, if permission is 

granted, that a condition is imposed on the decision notice that a Construction Method 
Statement is submitted to the Local Planning Authority prior to development 
commencing, which requires amongst other matters, the arrangement for deliveries 
associated with all construction works and the provision of on-site long-term facilities 
for contractor parking to be submitted for approval.   

 
7.37  With reference to the possibility of contractors’ vehicles parking in Widley Gardens or 

on other parts of the public highway within the vicinity, if permission is granted, the 
Local Planning Authority has no power to prohibit this. That said, an on-site facility for 
contractors’ vehicles would help limit this potential issue and if such vehicles were 
found to be an obstruction on the public highway, this would be a matter for the Police.  

 
Parking 
 

7.38 Representations have been received concerning the inadequacy of parking provision, 
and access to rear garages off The Dale  

 
7.39 The host dwelling has sufficient parking for 3 vehicles, in accordance with Havant's 

Car Parking SPD, together with a garage for cycle and bin storage. For the 3-bed 
proposal, two car parking spaces would be provided, together with cycle and bin 
storage, in accordance with Havant's Car Parking SPD. The turning space for vehicles 
on the accessway to the west also provides vehicular access to neighbouring garages 
and a turning area for those with a right of way over this access, which would still be 
available if permission was granted.  As found by the Highway Authority there is 
sufficient turning space for a vehicle to exit the site in a forward gear from the 
driveway. In parking terms the proposal therefore accords with Havant's Car Parking 
SPD. 

 
(v) Impact on trees & Landscaping 
 

7.40 Representations have been raised over the loss of trees and hedges on the site.  
 
7.41 Accompanying the application is a Tree Protection Plan, an Arboricultural Impact Plan 

and an Arboricultural Survey. 
 

7.42 There are several trees and hedges/vegetation around the site, of varying quality. 
There is also a mature Cedar of Lebanon tree (category B tree - moderate quality) to 
the northeast of the site, which has previously been inspected by the Council’s 
Arboricultural Officer and not considered to be worthy of a Tree Preservation Order 
(TPO), due to its lack of public amenity. This tree, which is outside of the application 
site, would not be felled as part of the application, and amended plans have relocated 
the refuse/recycling bins so that they are no longer sited within the root protection 
area.  

 

Page 55



7.43 As to a former TPO tree on the site this was in respect of a Horse Chestnut which was 
felled due to its poor condition and replaced with a whip Oak tree.  A recent inspection 
of this tree confirmed that it has died and from information provided, this tree perished 
before the applicant purchased the site. The intention is to replace this tree with a 
Hornbeam tree, as recommended by the Arboricultural Officer. Any replacement tree 
would be governed by its own TPO. As to the driveway, the existing hard surface 
would be retained to act as ground protection within the root protection areas for the 
retained trees on the eastern boundary for the duration of the development. 
 

7.44 At the entrance to the site on the eastern side is a Group TPO, which is made up of 
Hawthorn, Ash, Hazel and Elm. No works are proposed to these trees, which would be 
protected during the development by a condition, as would the protected Common Oak 
at the vehicular entrance to the site. 

 
7.45 The trees to be removed, which are set out as follows, have been identified either as 

Category C (C) which are trees of low quality or Category U (U), which are trees 
considered to be unsuitable for retention. 

 
 G2, which includes Ash, Prunus, Laburnum – western boundary - C 
 
 H3, Privet and Laurel hedge - western boundary - C 
 
 T3, Myrobalan Plum – to south of site - U 
 
 T4, Common Laburnum – to south of site - U 
 
 T5, Common Oak – western boundary - C 
 
 T6, Common Ash – western boundary - C 
 
 T7, English Elm –– western boundary – U 

 
 T8, Sycamore – northern boundary - U 
 

7.46 The Council’s Arboricultural Officer (AO) has been consulted over the proposal and 
raises no objection to the removal of the above trees and hedgerow, which are not 
visible from the public realm.  However, the AO has recommended that additional tree 
protection measures are included around the protected Common Oak tree at the 
entrance to the site and changes to the landscape proposal, with the proposed Alder to 
be replaced with a Holly tree and additional trees and hedging such as Birch and 
Beech along the western boundary. An amended plan has been received incorporating 
these changes. Conditions to secure the protection of the trees, replacement planting 
and landscaping are recommended. 
 
(vi) Impact on ecology 
 

7.47 Representations have been received regarding the loss of biodiversity by the removal 
of trees and hedgerow and the adverse impact on birds and bats. 

 
7.48 Accompanying the application is a Biodiversity/Ecological Assessment, which states: 
 
 “There will be a loss of some existing soft landscaping but to mitigate this, the 

proposals here included would not materially impinge on the main garden open space 
but would utilise the perimeter to provide zone of habitation and feeding opportunities 

Page 56



for the natural wildlife of the area.”  
 
7.49 The Council's Ecologist has been consulted over the proposal and having reviewed 

photographs of the site, the above Assessment and the Arboricultural report is of the 
view that the site is “… not considered to be of ecological value”. As to the trees to be 
felled, these: “…are not likely to have bat roosting features given their size, 
management and maturity.” The Ecologist advises that if permission is granted a 
nesting bird informative is added to the decision notice and the following condition: 
 

 “Development shall proceed in accordance with the European Sites Avoidance and 
Mitigation Checklist and recommendations made within the Biodiversity Assessment 
report. In addition, a bat roost enhancement shall be included within the new roof 
design or to a mature tree.  

 Reason: To ensure biodiversity is protected and enhanced in accordance with the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, Habitat and Species Regulations 2017, NERC Act 
2006, NPPF and Policy CS 11 of the Havant Borough Core Strategy March 2011.” 

 
7.50 If permission is granted the above informative and condition are recommended. 

 
(vii) Flood Risk & Drainage 
 
Flood Risk & Surface Water 
 

7.51 Representations have been received regarding localised flooding within garden areas. 
 

7.52 The site falls wholly within Flood Zone 1. Overall, the development is a low flood risk 
(less than 0.1%. AEP) and so is suitable for the residential development proposed. 
Based on current information, the site would remain in Flood Zone 1 with climate 
change in 2115.   

 
7.53 Surface water would be disposed of by a soakaway, for which Building Control 

approval would be required.  
 
7.54 Southern Water has been consulted over the proposal raising no objection but 

advising that “The Council’s Building Control officers or technical staff should be asked 
to comment on the adequacy of soakaways to dispose of surface water from the 
proposed development”. Building Control has not raised any objection to the proposal, 
which would fall within the remit of a Building Regulation application.  

 
7.55 As to the Council’s Drainage Team they were consulted raising no objection to the 

proposal, whilst advising that flooding has occurred in the past relating to an adjacent 
property. 
 
Foul Drainage  
 

7.56 As to foul drainage for the development this would be discharged to the public foul 
sewer, for which a formal application for a connection would be required from Southern 
Water. If permission is granted an informative to this effect would be included in the 
decision notice.  

 
7.57 Overall the proposal is considered to accord with policy CS15 of the Core Strategy. 

 
(viii) CIL 
 

7.58 The application has applied for self-build exemption under the CIL Regulations. 

Page 57



Therefore, if this exemption is secured, a CIL contribution would not fall due for the 
proposed development.  

 
8 Conclusion 
 
8.1 It is acknowledged that the development of an additional residential unit on the site 

would be likely to lead to a more intensive use of the land, resulting in some existing 
tree and hedgerow loss, an increase in vehicular trips and a possible rise in activity on 
the site. However, the site is of a size to comfortably accommodate the proposal 
together with the associated activities in a sustainable location, without adversely 
impacting on neighbouring residential amenity or impacting on the character and 
appearance of the area.  

 
8.2 The proposal would add a very modest addition to the Council’s housing figures which 

is supported at both the local and national level. The provision of car parking for both 
the host dwelling and the proposal accords with Havant’s Design Guide SPD and the 
access to the site is considered acceptable on highway safety grounds. The proposal 
is acceptable in drainage and flood risk terms and the landscape and ecological 
measures are appropriate for the development. Therefore, the development is 
considered to accord with the development plan when considered as a whole and the 
National Planning Policy Framework and conditional planning permission is 
recommended. 
 

 
 
9 RECOMMENDATION: 

 
That the Executive Head of Place be authorised to GRANT PERMISSION for 
application APP/23/00112 subject to the following conditions: 

 
1 GENERAL 

 
The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the 
date of this permission. 
Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

  
2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans: 
 
Plans 
 
Site Location & Block Plan - Drawing No. 172 TD24 
Site Layout Plan - Drawing No. 172 TD20 
Proposed New Dwelling - Drawing No. 172 TD 21 
Landscape  - Drawing No. 172 TD 20C 
Tree Protection Plan - Drawing No. Arbtech TPP 01 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment - Drawing No. Arbtech AIA 01 
 
Documents 
 
Arboricultural Survey by Arbtech, dated 08 November 2022 
Design & Access Statement 
Highway Report 

Page 58



European Site Avoidance & Mitigation Checklist 
Occupancy Calculator 
Solent Nutrient Budget Calculator 
Biodiversity/Ecological Assessment 
 
 
Reason: - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development. 

  
3 Development shall proceed in accordance with the European Sites Avoidance 

and Mitigation Checklist and recommendations made within the Biodiversity 
Assessment report. In addition, a bat roost enhancement shall be included 
within the new roof design or to a mature tree.  
 
Reason: To ensure biodiversity is protected and enhanced in accordance with 
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, Habitat and Species Regulations 2017, 
NERC Act 2006, NPPF and Policy CS11 of the Havant Borough Local Plan 
(Core Strategy) 2011. 

  
4 Notwithstanding the provisions of any Town and Country Planning General 

Permitted Development Order, no extension, or rear dormers in the roof shall 
be constructed within the curtilage of the site without the prior approval of the 
Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the neighbouring properties and to 
ensure adequate parking provision having due regard to policies CS16 and 
DM13 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 

  
5 Notwithstanding the provisions of any Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) Order 2015, prior to first occupation of the buildings 
hereby permitted the window in the first floor in the rear east elevation shall be 
fitted with, to a height of no less than 1.7m above finished floor level, 
non-opening lights and textured glass which obscuration level is no less than 
Level 4 of the Pilkington Texture Glass scale (or equivalent) and retained as 
such thereafter.  
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties 
and having due regard to policies CS11 and CS16 of the Havant Borough 
Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

  
6 The car parking, servicing and other vehicular access arrangements shown on 

the approved plans to serve the development hereby permitted shall be made 
fully available for use prior to the development being first brought into use and 
shall be retained thereafter for their intended purpose. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and having due regard to policy 
DM13 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

  
7 No development shall start on site until a construction method statement has 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, 
which shall include: 
 
(a) The provision of long term on site facilities for contractor parking;  
(b) The arrangements for deliveries associated with all construction works;  

Page 59



(c) Methods and phasing of construction works;  
(d) Access and egress for plant and machinery;  
(e) Protection of pedestrian routes during construction; 
(f) Location of temporary site buildings, compounds, construction material and 
plant storage areas;  
 
Construction work shall only take place in accordance with the approved 
method statement.  
 
Reason:  In order that the Local Planning Authority can properly consider the 
effect of the works on the amenity of the locality having due regard to Policies 
CS16 and DM10 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

  
8 Prior to any demolition, construction or groundwork commencing on the site 

the approved tree protective measures, including fencing and ground 
protection, as shown on the approved Arboricultural Survey by Arbtech dated 
08 November 2022 and the Tree Protection Plan, Drawing No. Arbtech TPP 01 
and the Landscape - Drawing No. 172 TD 20C shall be fully implemented and 
retained during the course of the development. There shall be no excavations, 
storage of materials or machinery, parking of vehicles or fires within the ground 
protection areas. The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance 
with the submitted details.  
 
Reason: To safeguard the continued health and presence of such existing 
vegetation and trees and to protect the amenities of the locality and having due 
regard to policies CS11 and CS16 of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core 
Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework 
 

  
9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notwithstanding any description of materials in the application no above 
ground construction works shall take place until samples or a full specification 
of the materials to be used externally on the building(s) have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall 
include the type, colour and texture of the materials. Only the materials so 
approved shall be used, in accordance with any terms of such approval. 
Reason: To ensure the appearance of the development is satisfactory and 
having due regard to policies CS11 and CS16 of the Havant Borough Local 
Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

  
 
10 The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until: 

(a) A water efficiency calculation in accordance with the Government's 
National Calculation Methodology for assessing water efficiency in new 
dwellings has been undertaken which demonstrates that no more than 
110 litres of water per person per day shall be consumed within the 
development, and this calculation has been submitted to, and approved 
in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; and 

(b) All measures necessary to meet the approved water efficiency 
calculation have been installed. 

Page 60



Reason: There is existing evidence of high levels of nitrogen and phosphorus 
in the water environment with evidence of eutrophication at some European 
designated nature conservation sites in the Solent catchment. The PUSH 
Integrated Water Management Strategy has identified that there is uncertainty 
as to whether new housing development can be accommodated without having 
a detrimental impact on the designated sites within the Solent. Further detail 
regarding this can be found in the appropriate assessment that was carried out 
regarding this planning application. In compliance with Regulation 63 of the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, the local planning 
authority has a duty to ensure that sufficient mitigation is provided against any 
impacts which might arise upon the designated sites. In coming to this 
decision, the Council has also had regard to Policy CS11 of the Havant 
Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011. 

 
  
11 Prior to the occupation of the development full details of the Electrical Vehicle 

Charging point and its location shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The Charging point shall be installed in 
accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of the dwelling 
and retained at all times thereafter.  
 
Reason: To ensure the appearance of the development is satisfactory and 
having due regard to policies CS11, CS14 and CS16 of the Havant Borough 
Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

  
12 Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted details of the 

photovoltaic panels for the dwelling's roof shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority in writing for approval. The approved scheme shall be 
implemented prior to the occupation of the development.  
 
Reason: In the interests of energy efficiency having due regard to policy CS14 
of the Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 

  
13 No part of the development shall be first occupied until details of the type, 

siting, design and materials to be used in the construction of all means of 
enclosure including boundaries, screens or retaining walls, have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the 
approved structures have been erected in accordance with the approved 
details. The structures shall thereafter be retained. 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the locality and occupiers of 
neighbouring property and having due regard to policy CS16 of the Havant 
Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

  
 
 
14 

POST OCCUPANCY 
 
The landscaping works shown on the approved plans (Landscape Drawing No. 
172 TD 20C), shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and 
within the first planting season following final occupation of the development 
hereby permitted. Any trees or shrubs planted or retained in accordance with 

Page 61



this condition which are removed, uprooted, destroyed, die or become severely 
damaged or become seriously diseased within 5 years of planting shall be 
replaced within the next planting season by trees or shrubs of similar size and 
species to those originally required to be planted. 
 
Reason: To ensure the appearance of the development is satisfactory and 
having due regard to policies CS11, CS16, DM8 and DM9 of the Havant 
Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 

  
15 The Hornbeam Tree shown on Landscape Drawing No. 172 TD 20C which is a 

replacement for a tree covered by a Tree Preservation Order, shall be planted 
in accordance with the approved details and within the first planting season 
following occupation of the development hereby permitted. If the replacement 
protected tree dies, another tree shall be planted, following agreement with the 
Local Planning Authority. 

 
Reason: To ensure the replacement of the tree covered by a Tree 
Preservation Order having due regard to policies CS11, CS16 and DM8 of the 
Havant Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011 and the National Planning 
Policy Framework 

  
16 At all times following occupation of the development hereby approved, all 

measures for water usage within the submitted nutrient budget shall be 
maintained in the development in perpetuity. 
 
Reason: There is existing evidence of high levels of nitrogen and phosphorus 
in the water environment with evidence of eutrophication at some European 
designated nature conservation sites in the Solent catchment. The PUSH 
Integrated Water Management Strategy has identified that there is uncertainty 
as to whether new housing development can be accommodated without having 
a detrimental impact on the designated sites within the Solent. Further detail 
regarding this can be found in the appropriate assessment that was carried out 
regarding this planning application. In compliance with Regulation 63 of the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, the local planning 
authority has a duty to ensure that sufficient mitigation is provided against any 
impacts which might arise upon the designated sites. In coming to this 
decision, the Council has also had regard to Policy CS11 of the Havant 
Borough Local Plan (Core Strategy) 2011. 
 

  
Appendices 
 

(A) Location Plan 
(B) Site Layout Plan 
(C) Proposed Elevations & Floor Plans 
(D) Perspective Views of Dwelling 
(E) Access & Visibility Plan 
(F) Swept Path Tracking Plans 
(G) Tree Protection Plan 

 
 

Page 62



 

LOCATION PLAN APPENDIX A

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



 

SITE LAYOUT PLAN APPENDIX B 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



 

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS & FLOOR PLANSAPPENDIX C

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



 

PERSPECTIVE VIEWS OF DWELLINGAPPENDIX D

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



 

ACCESS & VISIBILITY PLANAPPENDIX E

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



 

SWEPT PATH TRACKING PLANAPPENDIX F

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



 

TREE PROTECTION PLANAPPENDIX G

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Applications for Development
	RECOMMENDATIONS

	5(a) APP/23/00215 - The Gable, 32 Fishery Lane, Hayling Island, PO11 9NR
	APPENDIX A - Location Plan
	APPENDIX B - Block Plan
	APPENDIX C - Existing Floor Plan
	APPENDIX D - Proposed Floor Plan
	APPENDIX E - Existing & Proposed Elevations
	APPENDIX F1 - Examples of Similar Development
	APPENDIX F2 - Examples of Similar Development

	5(b) APP/23/00112 - Dale Lodge, 172 The Dale, Waterlooville, PO7 5JE
	APPENDIX A - Location Plan
	APPENDIX B - Site Layout Plan
	APPENDIX C - Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations
	APPENDIX D - PERSPECTIVE VIEWS
	APPENDIX E - Access & Visibility Plan
	APPENDIX F - Swept Path Tracking Plans
	APPENDIX G - Tree Protection Plan


